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EZCONN CORPORATION

Agenda
of
2019 AnnualGe ner al Sharehol der

Meeting time: At 9:00am, June 10, 2019 (Monday)
Meeting venue: Chientan Youth Activity Center (No. 16, Sec. 4, Zhongshan N. Rd., Shilir
Dist., Taipei City 11166, Taiwan (R.O.C.))

I.  Opening Address (report the attending nuntdfeshares)
[I. Chairman Address

[ll. Reports Items
() Business Report of 2018
(M) Supervisorodos Review Report of 2018
(I The directorg , supervisorg and employegs remuneration of 2018

IV. Ratification Items
() 2018 Business Report and Financial Statements.
() Companydés distribution of 2018 earnings

V. Items for Discussion and Election
()  Transfer surplus to capital increase by issuing skares.
() Amendments to the AArticles of Associati
(1  Amendments to the "Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets".
(IV) Amendments to the "Procedures of Granting of Loans".
(V) Amendments to the AProcedures of Making
(VI) By-electionof one independent director.
(VII) The release of neoompetition restrictions on newly elected directors.

VI. Ad Hoc Motion

VII. Adjournment



Reports Iltems

()  Business Report of 2018

Explanation: Please refer to padgeto 11 (Attachment 1) of this manual for the 20d8siness

report.

() Supervisor s Review Report of

2018

Explanation: Pleaserefertopad2 ( At t achment 2)
audit report.

of this mn

(1) The directorg , supervisors and employegs remuneration of 2018

Explanation:
According tothe Articles of Association of the Company, it is stipulated
Alf profits are available upon
all ocate no | ess than five perc

than five percent as director and supei sor 6s C 0 mj
distribution per resolution of the Board of Directors, taxes shall be
pursuant to | aw.. .0

The Company has allocated NT$169,754,585 oftgxeincome as th
compensation to employees, directors and supervisors, and &nisepl tg
all ocate NT$12,160,000 as empl o
director and supervisor's compensation, all of them will be issued in ca
The abovdisted distribution amount is the same as the recognized
amount in 2018.




Ratificati on Iltems

The first case

(Proposed by Board of Directors)

Cause:

2018 Business Report and Financial Statements.

Explanation:

1.

The 2018 individual financial statement and consolidated financial statemé
the Company have been audited by HUANG, HEIHUN and WEI,

LIANG -FA, accountants from Deloitte & Touche, and clean opinion report
been issued for the record. And after the business report has been auditec
supervisor as well, the written audit report has been issued.

Please refer to padeto 11 (Attachment 1), page 130 33 (Attachment 3) of
this manual for the business repo
financial statements.

It is hereby proposed &hareholderfor acknowledgment.

Resolution:

The second
case

(Proposed by Board @irectors)

Cause:

Companybds distribution of 2018 earr

Explanation:

1.

The 2018 surplus distribution of the Company has been passed by the reg
of the Board of Directors to distribute NT$1.50 as cash dividend and NT$(
as stock dividend per afe.

Please refer to pad? (Attachment 4) of this manual the 2018 surplus
distribution table.

After this surplus distribution has been passed in the General Meeting, the
Chairman is authorized to otherwise determine matters relateedivid&nd
base dte etc., the cash dividend is calculated up to one New Taiwan Dolla
(digits after the decimal point to be ignored) according to the distribution
proportion, and for the total number of fractional amounts less than one N
Taiwan Dollar, numbers after detal point will be adjusted in a descending
order, and the account number will be adjusted from the former to the late
meeting the total distribution amount of cash dividend.

It is hereby proposed &hareholderfor acknowledgment.

Resolution:




ltems for Discussion and Election

The first case

(Proposed by Board of Directors)

Cause:

Proposal for a new share issue through capitalization of earnings

Explanation:

1.

In order to enrich working capital, it is planned to allocate NT$33,000,0
shardolder's stock dividend from the distributable surplus in 2018,
transfer it to capital increase by issuing 3,300,000 new shares with NT$
value per share, according to the shareholding ratio of shareholders li
register of shareholders orethase date for issuing new shares, 50 share
be distributed per thousand shares for free, for distribution of fractional s
less than one share, within 5 days as of the base date for capital in
shareholders may register for shares roundhuihe stock affairs agency
the Company, for the shortage part in rounding up, it will be calculated
one New Taiwan Dollar and paid in cash according to nominal amour]
the fractional shares cannot be rounded up to one share, the Chair
authorized to consult with specific persons (excluding Employee Wg
Committee) for subscription according to nominal amount.
Subsequently, in case of changes in share capital of the Company and
impact on the number of outstanding shares, aarelly causing changes
shares allotment ratio of shareholders, the Board of Directors wi
authorized to handle relevant adjustment matters.

After this case has been passed by Shareholders' Meeting and subm
competent authority for approval, &a of Directors will be authorized
otherwise stipulate the base date for issuing new shares, issuing dd
other relevant matters.

The rights and obligations of the new shares issued this time are the s
the original shares.

It is hereby propaed toshareholderfor making decision.

Resolution:

The second cas

(Proposed by Board of Directors)

Cause: A me n d me n tAgsticlés of Intonperatiéio .
Explanation: | 1. | t I's planned to make amendment
Company acording to the amendment of Company Act.
2. Please refer to pagéb to 37 (Attachment 5) for the comparison table
amendments to the Articles of Association.
Resolution: | It is hereby proposed &hareholderfor making decision.




The third case

(Proposedy Board of Directors)

Cause: Amendments to the Operational procedures for Acquisition and Disposa
Assets'.

Explanation: | 1. | t i's planned to make amendment
Di sposal o f Assetso of tdér eof c@petgn
authority and the company requirements.

2. Please refer tpage B to 51 (Attachment 6) for the comparison table
amendments to the AProcedures fo
3. ltis hereby proposed &hareholderfor making decisio.
Resolution:

The fourth case

(Proposed by Board of Directors)

Cause: Amendments to theOperational Procedures for Loaning of Company Funds
Explanation: |[1. It i s planned to make amendment s
of the Company awrding to the order of competent authority and
company requirements.
2. Please refer to page2 to 53 (Attachment 7) for the comparison table
amendments to the AProcedures of
3. ltis hereby proposed &hareholderfor making decisio.
Resolution:

The fifth case

(Proposed by Board of Directors)

Cause: A me n d me n t Qperdtianal Prbcedur@s for Endorsements and Guarante
Explanation: |1. 't i s planned to make amendment s
and Gu a r athet @mpady aacdrding to the order of compe
authority and the company requirements.
2. Please refer to pagel to 56 (Attachment 8) for the comparison table
amendments to the AProcedures of
3. ltis hereby proposed &hareholderfor making decision.
Resolution:

The sixth case

(Proposed by Board of Directors)

Cause:

By-election of one independent director.

Explanation:

1. Pursuant to Article 15 of the Articles of Association, thea n d i
nomination system will & adopted for the one independent directo
by-election, whose term of office will start from the completion o#elsction
in General Meeting until June 21, 2020.

2. The list of independent director candidates has been reviewed and pas
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Board of Diretors of the Company on March 21, 2019, it is hereby sped
relevant information as follows:

Educati
Category of || Name of on . - Shareholding amou
nominee || nominee ||backgro Experience Current position (unit: share)
und
Entire Technology|| Yinghua Technology
Independen|| PENG, || Maste Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
Director ||HSIEH-JU|| degree|| Chief Financial Executive Vice 9,222
Officer of the Grou President
This byel ect i on IS handl ed accordi
El ection Measur es o of pdgdb@to 70 Apppralix

3) of this manual.
It is hereby proposed &hareholderfor election.

Result of
election:

The seventh casi

(Proposed by Board of Directors)

Cause:

The release of neoompetition restrictions on newly elected directors.

Explanation:

1.

3.

It is handled pursuant to Paragraph 1, Article 209 of Company Act, "F(
behavior of director conducted for himself/herself or other person withi
business scope of the company, important contents of such behavior s
described to thelfreholders' Meeting to acquire the permission”.
Certain directors of the Company invest in or operate the company wi
same or similar business scope as the Company, it is planned to propos
shareholders' meeting to approve the waiver of-cunpetition for newly
elected directors in accordance with Article 209 of the Company Act.
for release of nowompetition are as follows:

Title Name

PENG,
HSIEH-JU

PENG,
HSIEH-JU

PENG,
HSIEH-JU

Items for release of norcompetition

Independent

Director Executive Vice President ofirghua Technology Co., Ltd

Independent
Director

Independent Director of Cayman merchant Eurochar
Innovation CO., LTD.

Independent
Director

It is hereby proposed shareholderfor making decision.

Director of Icometrue Company Limited

Resolution:

Ad Hoc Motion

Adjournment



Attachment 1

Business Report of 2018

I.  Business conditions in 2018

(D Results of implementing business plan
In 2018, the consolidated net operating income is NT$2,805,106 thousand,
reduced by 3% yeasnyear, and the consolidated operating margin is 17.07%,
also reduced by 3% yeanyear, the consolidated net operating proift is
NT$129,627 thousand, the consolidated net profit after tax is NT$154,395
thousand, the consolidated earnings per share afteistNT$2.34, and the net
value per share is NT$32.1.

(I) Financial revenue and expenditure and profitability analysis
1.

Financial revenue and expenditure

In 2018, the consolidated net operating income is NT$2,805,106 thousand,
reduced by NT$94,844 thousand qmaring with the NT$2,899,950 thousand

in 2017. In the aspect of earnings, in 2018, the consolidated net profit after
tax is NT$154,395 thousand, increasHdl7,387 by NT$154,395 thousand
comparing with the NT$47,008 thousand in 2017.

2. Profitability analysis

() R

1

Analysis item 2017 2018
Return on assets (%) 1.55% 4.99%
Return on equity (%) 2.16% 7.35%
Profitability P;(i)dp_)lcj)ru((:);l Iirt]al Operating profit 22.97%| 19.64%
analysis 2)/0) P capialy et profit before tax 8.28%| 31.20%
Net profit ratio (%) 1.62% 5.50%
Basic earnings per share (NT$) 0.71 2.34

Notes: It is calculated according to the consolidated financial statement in 2018.

&

D status

High-frequency connector product lines

Products researched, developed and manufactured by the Company are
mostly highfrequency connectors, and we have strict requirements on both
stability and reliability of products. All kinds of products are mainly applied

in cable TV and cable broadband industries, in respond to rapid industry
development, apart from contiausly improving the capability of product
design and development by making the best of own resources and actively
participating in the technical research with research institutions, the
technology R&D team of the Company also actively joins product stasda
associations, masters the latest product standard specification, develops and
renovates all kinds of products by planning, and acquires certifications from
safety specification units of various countries and customers, so as to take a
leading role in he industry and keep in line with product requirements of
global customers.

In the aspect of product expansion, increase the products layout in the new
compressed coaxial connector, optoelectronic integrated products,
high-frequency isolator, coaxial filte high shielding jumper wire and new
base station higfrequency connector; in the aspect of improving production
efficiency, promote lean plan throughout the plant and introduce intelligent
production and assembly manner, effectively improve producfitcieacy

and vyield; and in the aspect of talent training, continue to implement
educational training in each department to strengthen the centripetal force of
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employees and training on mudkilled workers.

Optical element and module product lines

Researh and development of the Company mainly aim at three application
markets, namely applications in fixed broadband, data center and 5G forward
and afterward network. In fixed broadband application, products developed
include the XGPON BOSA on board solutp the XGSPON ONU
transceiver under mass production, and the -EB®N/XGSPON OLT
optical transceiver module that has completed sample presentation. Products
planned to be newly developed include the combo PON that is capable of
coexisting with GPON /X&0ON for flexible upgrading and application to
fiber-to-the-home, in industrial network connection, there are also many
XGS-PON ONU mini sticks with extensive application scenarios.

In data center application, there are QS AOC and transceiver module
that have been developed and introduced in production, aiming at the
requirements of improving Ethernet interface from 25Gps to the new standard
50Gps, and upgrading the data center from 100Gbps to 400Gbps. Besides,
R&D projects under planning include 40G@SFRDD SR8, SFP2&R and
QSFP56SR AOC optical transceiver module. In ledigtance single mode
optical fiber transmission scheme, what is expected to be finished is the DML
QSFP28LR4 product solution; its price is more competitive than the
traditional BVIL QSFP28LR4.

In 5G forward and afterward network application, products under
development and related to forward network include SHHR8and
SFP28BiDi optical transceiver module, for afterward network, it is the
XGS-PON mini ONU stick can be applied temall cell afterward
transmission, allowing the small cell to utilize the existing passive fiber
network for afterward transmission.

Furthermore, in order to accelerate the development of aforesaid products, the
R&D team continues to improve the reinfament in highfrequency circuit
design, integration of software and hardware, packaging and testing capacity
and manpower.

II.  Summary of 2019 business plan
(I) Business policy

1.

2.

5.
6

Stabilize existing customer base and develop new customers in target
industries, and ggand market share.

Continuously promote standardized products, and enhance the commonality
of each product to provide customers the design of cost effectiveness and
convenience.

Strengthen human resources cultivation and implement performance
appraisal.

At the stage of new product research and development, integrate the customer
requirements and manufacturing technology of key component suppliers to
shorten the time of research and development and effectively reduce the cost.
Ensure product quality and ingare customer satisfaction.

Continuously introduce the production of automation equipment to increase
production efficiency and reduce labor cost.

(I) Business target

1.

2.

High-frequency connector products

The target of expected business sales volume is 177,551e88&/
Optical element and module products

The target of expected business sales volume is 52,771,028 items.

9



(1) Important production and sales policies

1.

Production policy: continuous optimization of production process,
improvement of production yield and stening product delivery, forming

the production system of economic scale and cost rationality by vertical
integration.

Sales policy: actively establish marketing strategic alliance or partnership
with key customers, spare no efforts to promote core ptedud carry out
marketing project management with the orientation of customer requirements.
Besides, fully master the market trend and consumption trend, so as to
promptly respond to diversified product requirements of customers.

lll. Future development stegy of the Company

(I) High-frequency connector product lines
It is set with development unit for professional precision mold and automated
assembly equipment, responsible for the design and manufacturing of precision
mold and automated assembly equipment, artdbduces mass production.
Regarding the time of product research and development and the degree of
self-control of key technologies, the Company has been taking a leading position
in the industry domestically.

(I) Optical element and module product lines
A. Optical communication products

B.

In future longterm development strategy, Optical Communications Business
Group will improve internal technical competence and process capability
towards the extension of vertical integration according to market and
technologytrend, utilize the developed technical platform to develop products
towards market diversification, and find out competitive products and
solutions for customers in high growth markets such as 5G, data center and
|IOT etc. Besides, through technical coopierss with domestic and overseas
customers and domestic research institutions in relevant industries, the
Company will master the early market and introduce early technology to
improve future competitiveness. In the aspect of technical R&D personnel
and opganization, apart from recruiting senior R&D personnel continuously,
the Company will also provide professionals@rvice training to strengthen

the professional skill and project management capability of existing R&D
personnel.

Other optical products

By combining the core competitiveness established by optical communication
products and higifrequency connector products, the Company has extended
it to the products and applications different from these two industries, and has
established relevant R&D teamnd supply chain layout, focusing on the
characteristics of MEMS laser scanning modules, and carrying out product
vertical integration development and application from elements and modules
to systems, product applications include LIiDAR, Head Up DisplayQdHU

3D depth measurement and medical imaging system. In recent years, the
extensive application of ADAS has brought opportunities to the commercial
use of LIDAR; the demand on high speed networking in India market has
brought business opportunities to epti products of different technologies,
with increasing visibility of such market demands, the Company may also
accelerate the layout of other optical products to enter into the stage of mass
production.

10



IV. Impact of external competitive environment, regoig environment and overall
operation environment
Due to the rapid rising of competitors in China Mainland and the vertical integration of
certain competitors, the low price competition has become increasingly competitive, and
the Company will also contirously face the severe challenges in the acquisition cost of
key materials, inventory control and production efficiency, but the management team
and all employees of the Company will adhere to the spirit of relentless fighting to
break through the steepfftiulty and adversity, spare no efforts to accomplish the
annual growth mission and target of the company, creating the maximum profits for all
shareholders and the company.

Chairman CHEN, STEVE
President LEE, SHIH-CHENG
Accounting CHUANG, KUO-AN
Supervisor

11



Attachment 2

EZCONN CORPORATION
Supervisoros Review Rej

Among the 2018 business report, individual financial statement, consolidated
financial statement and surplus distribution etc. of the Company prepared and
submitted by Board of Directors, the individual financial statement and
consolidated financial statement has been jointly audited by HUANG,
HSIU-CHUN and WEI, LIANGFA, accountants from Deloitte & Touche, and
audit report has been issued, after we have examineddtesaid business report,
individual financial statement, consolidated financial statement and surplus
distribution etc., we have found no discrepancy, it is hereby issued this report

pursuant to Article 219 of Company Act for supervision.

Sincerely sbmitted to

EZCONN CORPORATION 019 Annual Gener al Shar eh

Supervisor: KO, YUAN-YU (Signature)
Supervisor: CHIEN, CHIH-CHENG (Signature)
Supervisor: LAI, WEN-HSIEN (Signature)

March 21, 2019
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Attachment 3

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TODRSO REPOR

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
EZconn Corporation

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financi al state
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the stateomeptelénsive

income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly,imagerial respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Segities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in the
Republicof China.@r r esponsibilities under those standar
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics foifi€gfublic Accountant of the

Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for ourminion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. These matters were addressed in
the context of ouaudit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters for the Companydés financial st
stated as follow:

Impairment of Trade Receivables

As of December 31, exdcdivahles,vitich areCpoeseptadrinyNévg Taitvan dadlars
(ANTS$O) , amounted to NT$557, 015 thousanit37,{3aet of
thousand). Since the provision for impairment of
judgment and affected by credit risks on receivables, it is identified as one of the key audit matters.

Please refer to Notes 4, 5 and 11 to the financial statements for the accounting policy, critical accounting
estimates and judgements, and detaikhefinformation about trade receivables.
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The audit procedures we performed in response to the above key audit matter included the following:

1. We obtained an understanding of the design of the key controls over trade receivables and we
tested the opating effectiveness of such controls.

2. We obtained an understanding of the accounting policy on impairment of trade receivables,
and we reviewed the rate of impairment loss in prior years to assess the reasonableness of the
allowance for impairment lescalculated by management for the current year.

3. We assessed the reasonableness of the allowance for impairment loss by verifying the
accuracy of the related report.

4. We reviewed the collection of individually material trade receivable balancedalémce
sheet date to assess whether any additional provision is needed.

Impairment of Inventory

As of December 31, 2018, the Companyods inventor.i
provision for inventory value decline of NT$91,983 thousandas¥ refer to Notes 4, 5 and 12 to the
financial statements for the details of the information.

The Companyds inventories are stated at the | owe
realizabl e value i s af fjwgemendIn ddgitiomiucimtingdamandadds s u b
rapid changes in technoloy, inventories may become-siowing or obsolete. Therefore, it has been

identified as a key audit matter.

The audit procedures we performed in response to the above key auditimsattied the following:

1. We obtained an understanding of the design of the controls over valuation of inventory and we
tested the operating effectiveness of such controls.

2. We obtained an understanding of the reasonableness of the accountingpatiegntory
write-downs, and tested the aging of inventory and verified that the valuation of inventory
confirmed with the Companyds policy.

3. We compared the carrying values to the latest sales invoices of sample items to assess whether
they were meased at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

4. We observed physical inventory count and assessed the physical condition of inventory to
evaluate the adequacy of inventory provisions of obsolete and damaged goods.

Responsibilities of Management and hose Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Secustiss Iss

and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, managementismespob | e f or assessing the
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
opeations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

14



Those charged with governance, including the sup
financial reporting process.

Auditorsd Responsibilities fnsr the Audit of the

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from materi al mi sstatement, whether due to
includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranaehigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from é@adand

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the audiitamdards generally accepted in the Republic of China,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraudyrsehithan for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of manageme:!
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
relatedtoeventsornod i t i ons t hat may cast significant
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditorsodo medsport t
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of o
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as agoaagn.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities
or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and ppeaiace of the audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any signifdedntiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

15



We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them atiskipsi@and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance ilé audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
and are therefore the key audit matters. We desc
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extrem&bircumstances, we

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partnersbng audit resulting in thi-€huhhudngpende
and LiangFa Wei.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

March 21, 2019

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intendegtorpresent the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted

in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices
to audit such financial statements are those generally applied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of reader s, the independent
statements have been translated into English from the original Chieesien prepared and used in the
Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or
any difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinessn guage i ndependent
report and thdinancial statements shall prevail.
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EZCONN CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2018AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4@&nd
Financial assets at amortized costirrent (Notes 4 and 8)
Debt investments with no active marketurrent (Notes 4, 10, 11 and 29)
Notes receivabléNotes 4, 5 and 11)
Trade receivables (Notes 4, 5 and 11)
Trade receivables from related parties (Notes 4, 5, 11 and 28)
Other receivables (Notes 4 ,5 and 11)
Current tax assets (Notes 4 and 24)
Inventories (Notes 4, 5 and 12)
Prepayments and other current assets

Total current assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incoomecurrent (Notes
4 and 7)

Finangal assets at amortized cestoncurrent (Notes 4, 8 and 29)
Financial assets measured at castrrcurrent (Notes 4 and 9)
Investments accounted for using equity method (Notes 4 and 13)
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4 ,14 and 28)
Intangible assets (Notes 4 and 15)
Deferred tax assets (Notes 4 and 24)
Prepayments for equipment (Note 28)
Refundable deposits

Total nonrcurrent assets

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Shortterm borrowings (Note 16)
Notes payable (Note 17)
Trade payables (Note 17)
Trade payables to related parties (Notes 17 and 28)
Other payables (Notes 18 and 28)
Provisions- current (Notes 4 anti9)
Other current liabilities (Notes 3, 4 and 22)

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 24)
Net defined benefit liabilities (Notes 4 and 20)
Guarantee deposits received

Total nan-current liabilities
Total liabilities

EQUITY (Notes 4 and 21)
Ordinary shares
Capital surplus
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Unappropriated earnings
Other equity

Total equity
TOTAL
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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2018 2017
Amount % Amount %
$ 880,592 27 $ 995,472 31

13,426 - - -

- - 22,675 1

2,109 - 3,869 -
557,015 17 437,969 14
7 - 40 -
13,921 1 11,308 -
1,690 - 720 -
407,290 12 306,083 10
1,814 - 2,660 -
1,877,864 57 1,780,796 56
42,018 1 - -
2,202 - - -

- - 12,620 1
1,167,077 35 1,135,827 36
121,173 4 121,127 4
6,957 - 6,381 -
79,992 3 92,057 3
2,122 - 2,724 -
3,038 - 3,188 -
1,424 579 43 1,373,924 44
$3,302,443 100 $3,154,720 100
$ 220,000 7 $ 220,000 7
379 - 131,927 4
342,122 10 98,520 3
291,155 9 303,142 10
118,992 4 92,199 3
8,055 - 48,797 1

44 810 1 34,254 1
1,025,513 31 928,839 29
86,597 3 63,418 2
71,566 2 76,672 3
400 - 400 -
158,563 5 140,490 5
1,184,076 36 1,069,329 34
660,000 20 660,000 21
234,872 7 234,872 7
217,931 7 213,230 7
50,573 1 35,315 1
1,019,271 31 992 547 32
(64,280 (2) (50,573 (2)
2,118,367 64 2,085,391 66
$3,302,443 100 $3,154,720 100



EZCONN CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning®er Share)

2018 2017
Amount % Amount %
NET REVENUE (Notes 4, 5, 22 and 28) $2,4%,537 100 $2,627,008 100

COST OF REVENUE (Notes 12, 20, 23 and 2€ 2,160,471 87 2,234,654 85

GROSS PROFIT 334,066 13 392,354 15
OPERATING EXPEMNSES (Notes 11, 20, 23 anc

28)

Selling and marketing expenses 57,273 2 60,101 3

General and administrative expenses 144,804 6 157,655 6

Research and development expenses 110,005 5 107,987 4

Total operating expenses 312,082 13 325,743 13

OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND

EXPENSES (Note 11) 64,841 3 80,412 3
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 86,825 3 147,023 5
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

(Notes 4, 11 and 23)

Other income 10,923 - 15,737 1

Other gains and losses 40,477 2 (87,337 3

Share of profit or loss of subsidiaries 52,258 2 (13,519 Q)

Finance costs (2,262 - (2,469 -

Total noroperating income and expense: 101,396 4 (87,585 3

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 188,221 7 59,438 2
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4 and 24) 33,826 1 12,430 -
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 154,395 6 47,008 2

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME /(LOSS)
(Notes 4,7, 20 and 24)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequent
to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 3,332 - (4,339 -
Unrealized loss on investments in equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income )] - - -
(Continued)
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EZCONN CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning®er Share)

2018 2017
Amount % Amount %
Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss $ (400 - $ 737 -
2,929 - (3,599 -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreigr
operations (20,732 - (18,383 Q)
Income tax relating to items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 3,980 - 3,125 -
(16,759 - (15,259 Q)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, n
of income tax (13,829 - (18,85% Q)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR $ 140,573 6 $ 28151 _ 1
EARNINGS PER SHARHENote 5)
Basic $ 2.34 $ 071
Diluted $ 2.33 $ 071
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. (Concluded)
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EZCONN CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018AND 2017

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2017
Appropriation of 2016 earnings

Legal reserve

Special reserve

Cash dvidends distributed by the Company
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2017

Other comprehensive loss for the year ended December
2017, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended
December 31, 2017

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2017
Effect of retrospective application
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2018 AS RESTAED
Appropriation of 2017 earnings

Legal reserve

Special reserve

Cash dividends distributed by the Company
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2018

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended
December 31, 2018, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended
December 31, 2018

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

Other Equity (Notes 3, 4 and 21)

The accompanying notes are an integral patti@financial statements.
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Unrealized
Gain (Loss) on
Financial
Exchange Assets at Fair
Differences on Value Through
Share Capital (Note 21) Retained Earnings (Notes 3, 4 and 21) Translating Other
Share (In Capital Surplus Unappropriated Foreign Comprehensive

Thousands) Amount (Note 21) Legal Reserve Special Reserve Earnings Total Operations Income Total Total Equity
66,000 $ 660,000 $ 234,872 % 184,234 % - $ 1,231,249 $ 1,415483 $ (35,31 % - $ (35,31 $ 2,275,040

) - - 28,996 - (28,999 - - - ] ]

- - - - 35,315 (35,315 - - - - -
- - - - - (217,800 (217,800 - - - (217,800
- - - - - 47,008 47,008 - - - 47,008
- - - - - (3,599 (3,599 (15,259 - (15,258 (18,857
- - - - - 43,409 43,409 (15,259 - (15,58) 28,151
66,000 660,000 234,872 213,230 35,315 992,547 1,241,092 (50,573 - (50,573 2,085,391
- - - - - 21,243 21,243 - 3,160 3,160 24,403
66,000 660,000 234,872 213,230 35,315 1,013,790 1,262,335 (50,573 3,160 (47,413 2,109,794

- - - 4,701 - (4,70) - - - - -

- - - - 15,258 (15,259 - - - - -
- - - - - (132,000 (132,000 - - - (132,000
- - - - - 154,395 154,395 - - - 154,395
- - - - - 3,045 3,045 (16,759 (118 (16,867 (13,829
- - - - - 157,440 157,440 (16,753 (119 (16,867 140,573
66,000 $ 660,000 $ 234,872  $ 217931 $ 50,573 1,019,271 $ 1,287,775 $ (67329 $ 3,044 $ (64,280 2,118,367



EZCONN CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax $ 188,21 $ 59,438
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expenses 32,033 30,004
Amortization expenses 6,778 8,030
Expected credit loss reversed on trade receivables (65,772 (88,059
Finance costs 2,262 2,469
Interest income (10,399 (8,187
Share of (profit)/loss of subsidiaries (52,258 13,516
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 709 380
(Reversal of) writedown of inventories 2,255 (14,579
Recognition of provisions - 10,165
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Notes receivable 1,760 2,226
Trade receivables (53,279 509,484
Trade receivables from related parties 33 999
Other receivables (2,222 6,326
Inventories (103,462 (6,161
Prepayments and other current assets 846 Q)
Notes payable (131,549 (21,119
Trade payables 243,602 (52,189
Trade payables to related parties (11,987 (190,449
Other payables 25,26 (37,889
Provisions - (27,609
Other current liabilities (30,186 25,091
Net defined benefit liability (1,779 (3,982
Cash generated from operations 40,646 217,925
Interest received 10,005 7,570
Interest paid (2,319 (2,372
Income tax paid (970 (20,466
Net cash generated from operating activities 47,365 202,657
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of financial assets measurenbsit (33,042 -
Proceeds from sale of financial assets measured at cost 40,089 -
Purchase of debt investments with no active market - (23,618
Proceeds from sale of debt investments with no active mark - 17,046
Payrents for property, plant and equipment (30,089 (42,560
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 742
Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits 150 (227)
Payments for intangible assets (7,359 (8,599
Net cash used in investing activities (30,245 (57,213
(Continued)

21



EZCONN CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sheterm borrowings
Repayments of shetérm borrowings
Dividends paid to owners of the Company

Net cash (used in) generated from financing activities

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF
THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE
YEAR

2018 2017
$2,410,000 $ 3,370,000
(2,410,000 (3,150,000
(132,000 (217,800
(132,000 2,200
(114,880 147,644
995,472 847,828
880,592 995,472

(Concluded)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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DECLARATION OF CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AFFILIATES

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of EZconn Corporation
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, under the Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Coralidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises
are the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with
I nternational Financi al Repoctahg SEaaathantds . 1®, |
information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements is included in the consolidated
financial statements. Consequentlg,cdann Corporatiorand subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of
combined inancial statements.

Very truly yours,
EZCONN CORPORATION

By

CHEN, STEVE
Chairman

March 21, 2019
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| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORSS6 REPORT

TheBoard of Directors andiareéholders
EZconn Corporation

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consoliddiiedncial statements of EZcon@orporation and its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 20
and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flowsds then
ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accountin
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, th.
consolidatedinancial position of the Group as of December 31, 2018 and, 20i¥7its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulatior
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by @iesi Issuers and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (lIAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC
Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission ofiltie Rep

of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financia
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of Chin
OQur responsibilities under those standards are fu
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordan
with The Norm of Professional Etts for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audi
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providesddyasiir opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit ¢
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. These matters wee iaddress
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereor
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters for th& r o ucpn8didated financial statements for gfear ended December 31, 304re
stated as follows:

Impairment of Trade Receivalsle

As of December 31, 2018, tli&roupd s t rade receivables, whicliAnANT&EOpT
amounted to NT$63866 thousand (net of allowance for impaimhéoss of NT$137,464 thousand). Since the
provision for i mpair ment of trade receivables is
credit risks on receivables, it is identified as one of the key audit matters.
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Please refer to Notes 4,ahd 11 to the consolidated financial statements for the accounting, polt@al
accounting estimates and judgements, getdils of the informatioabout trade receivables.

The audit procedures we performed in response to the above key auditimohttird the following:

1. We obtained an understanding of the design of the key controls over trade receivables and we tested ti
operating effectiveness of such controls.

2. We obtained an understanding of the accounting policy on impairment of eadwables, and we
reviewed the rate of impairment loss in prior years to assess the reasonableness of the allowance f
impairment loss calculated by management for the current year.

3. We assessed the reasonableness of the allowance for impairmehy lessfying the accuracy of the
related report.

4. We reviewed the collection of individually material trade receivable balances after balance sheet date t
assess whether any additional provision is needed.

Impairment of Inventory

As of December 31,21 8 , the Groupbs inventories amounted t
inventory value decline of NT$129,904 thousand). Please refer to Notes 4, 5 and 12 to the consolidated financi
statements for the details of the information.

T h e Grinvantpri@sare statedt the lower of cost or net realizable vahrd estimation of net realizable
valuei s affected by management s subjective judgeme
technology, inventories may become slowving or obsolete. Therefore, it has been identified as a key audit
matter.

The audit procedures we performed in response to the above key audit matter included the following:

1. We obtained an understanding of the design of the controls over valuatioreofaryvand we tested the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

2. We obtained an understanding of the reasonableness of the accounting policy on inventalgwaste
and tested the aging of inventory and verified that the valuation of inventory confe d wi t h t he

policy.

3. We compared the carrying values to the latest sales invoices of sample items to assess whether they we
measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

4. We observed physical inventory count and assessed thgcahgondition of inventory to evaluate the
adequacy of inventory provisions of obsolete and damaged goods.

Other Matter

We have also audited the parent company only financial statements of EZconn Corporation as of and for the
years ended December 3018 and 2017 on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the corgdidateial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and tl
IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the
Republic of Chim, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frat
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statetnen, management is responsible
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the goi
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidateubeoGto cease operations, or

has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the supe
reporting process.

Audi torsd Responsi bi | nstlidated Finbinzial StatdémentsAudi t of t he C

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements a
whole are free from materi al mi sstatement , whet he
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an at
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will alway
detect a material misstatement when iisex Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, w
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of matemisstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidenc
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Thefris&t detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understandirgf internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ¢
the Groupds internal control

3. Evaluate the appropriatersesf accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

4, Conclude on the appropriateness of management &s
on the audit evidence obt&d, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may <cast significant doubt on the Groupds abil.
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in adii auor sé r eport 1
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify ot
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
However, futwe events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, includin
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated finanai@sents represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities or business
activities within the Group to express apinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsibl
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regardingngaatber matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statementehzawe complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters th
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matirs communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were ¢
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 201
and are therefore the key audit matters. We desdrizes e mat t er s i n our auditors
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequenceg sb deuld
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit r-GhenwHuangamadl g i !
Liang-Fa Wei.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Tawan
Republic of China

March 21, 2019

Notice to Readers

The accompanyingonsolidatedfinancial statements are intended only to presentcibresolidatedfinancial
position, financial performanceand cash flows in accordance with accounting pritespand practices
generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedure
and practices to audit suctonsolidatedfinancial statements are those generally applied in the Republic of
China.

For the @nvenience of readers, then d ependent a u d adcanpanyingonsolidatedtfinarciald t
statementshave been translated into English from the original Chinese vengieparedand used in the
Republic of Chinalf there is any conflict betwedhe English version and the original Chinese version or any
difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chitesguageindependentauditordreport and
consolidatedinancial statements shall prevail.
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EZCONN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 6)
Financial assets at amortized costirrent (Notes 4 and 8)
Debt investments with no active marketurrent (Notes 4, 10, 11 and 30)
Notes receivable (Notes 4, 5 and 11)
Trade receivables (Notes 4, 5 and 11)
Trade receivables from related parties (Notes 4, 5,11 and 29)
Other receivables (Notes 4 ,5 and 11)
Current tax assets (Notes 4 and 25)
Inventories (Notes 4, 5 and 12)
Prepayments and other current assets (Note 16)

Total current asds

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incoomecurrent (Notes 4 and °

Financial assets at amortized ttosoncurrent (Notes 4, 8 and 30)
Financial assets measured at cosincurrent (Notes 4 and 9)
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4, 14 and 29)

Intangble assets (Notes 4 and 15)

Deferred tax assets (Notes 4 and 25)

Prepayments for equipment (Note 29)

Refundable deposits

Longterm prepayments for leases (Note 16)

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Shortterm borrowings (Note 17)
Notes payable (Note 18)
Trade payables (Note 18)
Other payables (Note 19)
Current tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 25)
Provisions- current (Notes 4 and 20)
Other current liabilities (Notes 3, 4 a@d)

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 25)
Net defined benefit liabilities (Notes 4 and 21)
Other norcurrent liabilities

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
EQUITY (Notes 4 and 22)
Ordinary shares
Capital surplus
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Unappropriated earnings
Other equity
Total equity

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2018 2017
Amount % Amount %
$ 1,225,360 38 $ 1,288,377 43

61,357 2 - -

- - 70,741 2

16,879 - 29,539 1
632,666 19 508,767 17
7 - 40 -
18,516 1 14,626 1
1,690 - 3,351 -
695,272 21 522,827 17
19,140 1 11,628 -
2,670,887 82 2,449,896 81
42,018 1 - -
2,202 - - -

- - 12,620 1
395,581 12 404,757 13
10,532 1 8,516 -
91,549 3 112,101 4
3,997 - 4,322 -
3,163 - 3,325 -
23,353 24,472 1
572,395 18 570,113 19
$ 3,243,282 2100 $ 3,020,009 2100
$ 220,000 7 $ 220,000 7
379 - 131,927 4
483,545 15 177,611 6
183,703 6 160,181 5
6,060 - - -
8,055 - 48,797 2
56,551 2 47,173 2
958,293 30 785,689 26
86,597 3 63,418 2
71,566 2 76,672 3
8,459 - 8,839 -
166,622 5 148,929 5
1,124,915 35 934,618 31
660,000 20 660,000 22
234,872 7 234,872 8
217,931 7 213,230 7
50,573 2 35,315 1
1,019,271 31 992,547 33
(64,280 (2) (50,573 (2)
2,118,367 65 2,085,391 69
$ 3,243,282 100 $ 3,020,009 100



EZCONN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars Except Earnings Per Sharg

2018 2017
Amount % Amount %
NET REVENUE (Notes 4, 5, 23 and 29) $ 2,805,106 100 $ 2,899,950 100
COST OF REVENUE (Notes 12, 21 and 24) 2,326,365 83 2,391,878 83
GROSS PROFIT 478,741 17 508,072 17
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 11, 21, 24 and 2¢
Selling and marketing expenses 73,260 3 76,664 3
General and administrative expenses 218,398 8 236,604 8
Research and development expenses 122,297 4 123,606 4
Total operating expeses 413,955 15 436,874 15
OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
(Note 11) 64,841 2 80,412 3
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 129,627 4 151,610 5
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
(Notes 4, 11 and 24)
Other income 14,993 1 25,232 1
Other gains and losses 63,688 2 (119,580 %
Finance costs (2,419 - (2,619 -
Total nonoperating income and expenses 76,265 3 (96,962 3
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 205,892 7 54,648 2
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4 and 25) 51,497 2 7,640 -
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 154,395 5 47,008 2
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
(Notes 4, 7, 21 and 25)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently tc
profit or loss:
Remeasurement okéined benefit plans 3,332 - (4,339 -
Unrealized loss on investments in equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income ()] - - -
Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified subsequédyto profit or loss (400 - 737 -
(Continued)
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EZCONN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars Except Earnings Per 8are)

2018 2017
Amount % Amount %
$ 2,929 - $ (3,599 -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to pi
or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations (20,732 - (18,383 D
Income tax relating to items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 3,980 - 3,125 -
(16,753 - (15,259 (2)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net ¢
income tax (13,829 - (18,8579 (1)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR $ 140,573 5 $ 28,151 1
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 26)
Basic $ 234 $ 071
Diluted $ 233 $ 071
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. (Concluded)
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EZCONN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New TaiwanDollars)

Other Equity (Notes 3, 4 and 22)

Unrealized
Gain (Loss)
Exchange on Financial
Differences  Assets at Fair
Retained Earnings (Notes 3, 4 and 22) on Value
Share Capital (Note 22) Capital Translating  Through Other
Share (In Surplus Special Unappropriated Foreign Comprehensive
Thousands) Amount (Note 22)  Legal Reserve Reserve Earnings Total Operations Income Total  Total Equity
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2017 66,000 $ 660,000 $ 234872 $ 184,234 $ - $1231,249 $ 1415483 $ (35315 $ - $ (35315 $ 2,275,040
Appropriation of 2016 earnings
Legal reserve - - - 28,996 - (28,996 - - - - -
Special reserve - - - - 35,315 (35,315 - - - - -
Cash dividends distributed by the Company - - - - - (217,800 (217,800 - - - (217,800
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2017 - - - - - 47,008 47,008 - - - 47,008
Other comprehensive loss for the year ended
December 31, 2017, net of income tax - - - - - (3,599 (3,599 (15,259 - (15,259 (18,857
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ent
December 31, 2017 - - - - - 43,409 43,409 (15,258 - (15,259 28,151
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 66,000 660,000 234,872 213,230 35,315 992,547 1,241,092 (50,573 - (50,573 2,085,391
Effect of retrospective application - - - - - 21,243 21,243 - 3,160 3,160 24,403
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2018 AS RESTATED 66,000 660,000 234,872 213,230 35,315 1,013,790 1,262,335 (50,573 3,160 (47,413 2,109,794
Appropriation of 2017 earnings
Legal reserve - - - 4,701 - (4,701 - - - - -
Special Reserve - - - - 15,258 (15,259 - - - - -
Cash dividends distributed by the Company - - - - - (132,000 (132,000 - - - (132,000
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2018 - - - - - 154,395 154,395 - - - 154,395
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year er
December 31, 2018, net of income tax - - - - - 3,045 3,045 (16,759 (116 (16,867 (13822
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ent
December 31, 2018 - - - - - 157,440 157,440 (16,753 (119 (16,867 140,573
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2018 66,000 $ 660,000 $ 234872 $ 217931 $ 50573 $ 1,019.271 $ 1,287,775 $ (67,329 $ 3044 $ (64,280 $ 2,118,367

The accompanying notes are an im&gart of the financial statements.
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EZCONN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expenses
Amortization expenses
Expected credit loss reversed on trade receivables
Amortization of prepayments for leases
Finance costs
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
(Reversal of) writedown of inventories
Recognition of provisions
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Notes receivable
Trade receivables
Trade receivables from related parties
Other receivalds
Inventories
Prepayments and other current assets
Notes payable
Trade payables
Trade payables to related parties
Other payables
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liability
Cash generated from operations
Interestreceived
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of financial assets measured at cost
Proceeds from sale of financial assets measured at cost
Purchase of debt investments with no active market

Proceeds from sale of debt investments witlactive market

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits
Paymentsdr intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities
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2018 2017

$ 205,892 $ 54,648
67,170 66,420
7,158 8,376
(65,773 (88,059
707 698
2,416 2,614
(23,710 (9,32)
1,736 2,353
2,255 (11,9%)
- 10,165
12,660 (16,082
(60,952 521,671
33 119
(3,500 7,305
(174,562 109,964
(7,529 (86)
(131,548 (21,119
305,934 (216,177
- (11)
21,416 (63,59)
- (27,609
(31,369 36,949
(1,774 (3,989
136,670 363,313
13,320 8,677
(2,470 (2,517
(1,639 (32,869
145,885 336,605

(97,929 -

104,025 -
- (38,346
- 16,763
(63,186 (58,296
1,060 2,092
160 (227
(9,189 (9,669
(65,059 (87,680

(Continued)



EZCONN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sheterm borrowings $ 2,410,000 $ 3,370,000

Repayments of sheterm borrowings (2,410,000 (3,150,000

Decrease in other negurrent liabilities (380 (416

Dividends paid to owners of the Company (132,000 (217,800

Net cash (used in) generated from financing activities (132,380 1,784

EFFECTS OF EXBIANGE RATE CHANGES ON THE BALANCE Ol

CASH HELD IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES (11,4679 (34,219
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (63,017 216,495
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE

YEAR 1,288,377 1,071,882
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR $ 1,225,360 $ 1,288,377
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. (Concluded)
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Attachment 4

EZCONN CORPORATION
Surplus Distribution Statement

2018
Unit: NT$

Opening undistributed surplus 840,587,376
Influence number in retrospective applicati 21,243,269
Op_enlng undistributed surplus after 861,830,645
adjustment
Actuarial gains (losses) listedto reserved 3,045,538
surplus
Undistributed surplus after adjustment 864,876,183
Net profit of the term 154,394,585
Allocation of statutory surplus reserve (109 (15,439,459)
Allocation of special surplus reserve (13,707,447)
pursuant to law
Distributable surplus of the term 990,123,862
Distribution item

Stock dividend (33,000,000)

Cash dividend (99,000,000)
Ending undistributed surplus 858,123,862

Chairman:Chen, Steve Managerial officer.LEE, Accounting Supervisor:
SHIH-CHENG CHUANG, KUO-AN
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Attachment 5

EZCONN CORPORATION

Comparison Table on Amendments

to thee Articles of Incorporation @

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of amendmen

After the stock has become listed or GV&e-Counter, where the Compal
plans to transfer the shares bought back pursuant to law to the empl
and it is planned to transfer them to employees at the price lower thg

After the stock has become listed or Ovelhe-Counter, where the
Company plans to transfer the shares bought back pursuant to lay
employees, and it is planned to transfer them to employeks ptice

Make amendments
for the company

decides to distribute dividend and bonus or other benefits. After puli
offering by the Company, the registration of share transfer as mentio

preceding paragraph shall not be carried out within sixty days befo

Article 7 average price in actual shares buyback pursuant to relevant laws §  lower than the average price in actual shares buyback pursuany stock to become
decrees, then it shall only be hartilter the resolution by the last relevant laws and decrees, then it shall only be handled after t listed.
Sharehol dersd Meetin resolution by the | ast S
After public offering, pursuantto Article 56 o f fi Gu i d e | i|After public offering, pursuantto Article54 of #AGui de
Rai se and | ssue Negotiable Secuto Raise and | ss u,&heNtbegssuing sulbstripti Make amendments
of the Company is not restricted by the employee stock option certific{ price of the Company is not restricted by the employee stock op| for the company
stipul ated i n lidesforilssuereo Raig armlissué|cer ti fi cate as stipulated in stock to become
Negotiable Securitieso, it shal and I ssue Negotiable Securit listed.
last Shareholders' Meeting. resolution ly the last Shareholders' Meeting.
Make amendments
The objects of transferring the shares bought back by the Comp according to
pursuant to law, objects of issuing employee stock option certifical Paragraph 4, Article
Newly added restrictgdemplovee _stock awards, and objects fo_r_subscribinq the 167—1_; Paragraph 3,
’ shares issued may include the employees of affiliated companieq  Article 167-2;
have met certain conditions, and the Board of Directors may ij Paragraph 7 and 11
authorized to resolve the conditions and distribution methodsdhel  Article 267 of
Company Act.
If the Company intends to cancel public offering, it may only handle m Amended pursuant t
regarding cancellation of public offed according to Article 156 of Deleted. Article 156-2 of
Company Act. Company Act.
The share of the Company are registered shares signed or seald
The shares of the Company are registered shares signed or sealed j more than threethe director representing the company, and they
than three directors, and they will be issued after certification by thh  be issued after certification by the bank may act as the stock is Amended pursuant t
compeent authority or the issue registration agency approved by it. A certifier pursuant to lawCompetentauthority or the issue Arti
! - . ) . - - - rticle 162 of
public offering by the Company, the shares issued may be exempted registration agency approved by it.After public offering by the Company Act
printing share certificate, but they shall be registered in centralized seq Company, The shares issued by the Company may be exempted ’
depository enterprise. printing share certificate, but they shall be registered in centraliz
securities depository enterprise.
The registration of share transfer shall not be carried out within thirty | The registration of share transfer shall not be carried out vithrig
before General Meeting, within fifteen days before Interim Sharehold sixty days before General Meeting, witlfifieen thirty days before | Make amendments
Article 8 Meeting, or within five days before the base date on which thep@oyn | Interim Shareholders' Meeting, or within five days before the bated for trlle cct))mpany
stock to become

on which the Company decides to distribute dividend and bonug

other benefitsAfterpubli ic-offering-by-the-Company-theregistratio!

listed.
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Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of amendmen

General Meeting and within thyrdays before Interim Shareholders'
Meeting.

Article 9

After public offering, the date, location and subject of convocation of
meeting shall be notified to each shareholditytllays before convening
Gener al Meeting and fifteen day

Meeting of the Company.

Atfter public offering, The date, location and subject of convocatio
the meeting shall be notified to each shareholder thirty blefgse
convening General Meeting and fifteen days before convening In

Sharehol dersdé Meeting o

Make amendments
for the company
stock to become

listed.

Article 14

All resolutions of a Shareholders' Meeting shall be recorded in the mi
signed or sealed by the chairperson of Shareholders' Meeting, and
minutes shall be distributed to the shareholders within twenty days aft
meeting. After public offering by the Company, the distribution of miny
in preceding paragraph may beade by announcement.

All resolutions of a Shareholders' Meeting shall be recorded in {
minutes signed or sealed by the chairperson of Shareholders' Mg
and the minutes shall be distributed to the shareholders within t

days after the meetingfter public offering by the Company, the

distribution of minutes in preceding paragraph may be made b
announcement.

Make amendments
for the company
stock to become

listed.

Article 15

The Company sets five to nine directors and two to three superv
with three years of term of offichey will be elected by the

Shareholders' Meeting from the persons with disposing capacity,

and the candidate nomination system as presciibg&af Article 192 o

The Company sets five to nine directors and two to three supervisbrs

three years of term of office, they will be elected by the Shareholdg

Meeting from the persons with disposing capacity, and reappointme
acceptable if reelected.

After public offering by the Company, among the aforesaid seats ¢
directors, the nmber of independent director shall be at least two and
less than one fifth of the total seats of directors. The candidate nomir

system as prescribed in 1 of Article 192 of Company Act will be adopté
the election of independent directors. Ralevmatters regarding the
acceptance and announcement etc. of the nomination of independent
candidates shall be handled pursuant to the Company Act, Securit
Exchange Act and relevant laws and decrees. Independent director
nonrindependentidectors shall be elected concurrently, and election q
will be calculated separately.
After public offering by the Company, the total shareholding ratio of
directors and supervisors thereof are subject to the regulations of seg
regulatory athority.

|supervisorsAnd they will be elected by the Shareholders' Meeting

Company Act will be adopted for the election of directors and

the persons with disposing capacity, and reappointment is accept
re-elected.
After public of fering by the Company,Among the aforesaid seats
directors, the number of independent director shall be at least tw
no Iess than one fifth of the total seats of dlrectélp&eaaekéae

law&an&é%%e&eqarqu mdependent dlrectors professmna

gualification, shareholding, patitne restriction, nomination and

election method, and other matters shall be complidd it shall be

handled pursuant to relevant requlations ahpetent authority in
charge of securitiesndependent directors and nordependent

directors shall be elected concurrently, and election quota will |

calculated separately.
After public offering by the Company, The total shareholding ratio
all direcrs and supervisors of the Company are subject to th
regulations of securities regulatory authority.

Adoptc andi d

nomination system
for the election of

directors and
supervisors of the
company.
Make amendments
for the company
stock to become
listed.

Article 16

When the director's number of vacancies reaches to one third of the
number or all supervisors are removed, the Board of Directors shall cd
the I nterim Shar ehol der s-8lectibp, artd th
term of office hereof is limited to make up the term of office of the orig

When the director's numbef vacancies reaches to one third of the

number or all supervisors are removed, the Board of Directors §
convene the I nteri m SHirtg sidydays fdr
by-election, and the term of office thereof is limited to make upetha

directors or supervisors. After public offering by the Company, Board

of office of the original directors or supervisofé

Make amendments
for the company
stock to become

listed.
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Before amendment

After amendment Basis of amendmen

Directors shalll convene the |
for by-election.

nt

The supervisor set by the Company is responsible for supervis

of fering, when the Company is

ing| The supervisor sdty the Company is responsible for supervising
businesses of the Company pursuant to laws and decrees. But after

businesses of the Company pursuant to laws and decreestéBut

. . . Make amendments
s| public offering, when t he Company is se for the compan
Article 19 of Article 14 of Securities Ebhange Act, there is no need to set the| pursuant to 4 of Article 14 of Securities Exchange Act, there is no pany
S . . N : -1 stock to become
supervisor; if the supervisor has been set, he/she will be removed ce to set the supervisor; if the supervisor has been set, he/she wil listed
upon the establishment of AAudqremoved certainly upon the es '
supervisor hereof will also lose effect immediately. provisions on the supervisor hereof will also lose effect immediaf
At the close of each fiscal year, the Board of Directors of the Compan At the close of each flsca] year, the Board of Directors of the Con] Make amendments
. 1 shall prepare the following book of tables or forms and forward {
. prepare the following book of tables or forms and forward the sam¢ . L . . for the company
Article 23 . o . . same to supervisors for auditing thirty days before convening t
supervisors for auditing thirty days before convening the General Meg General Meeting. and submit the same to the General Mdetin stock to become
and submit th same to the General Meeting for acknowledgment. 9 geting listed.
acknowledgment
The Company authorizes the Board of Directors to pass a resoll
agreed by the majority oftending directors in a meeting attended fAmended pursuant t
Article 24 Newly added. than two thirds of directors to, in whole or in part, distribute thqd  Article 240 of
dividend and bonus in cash, and propose it to the last Sharehol{ = Company Act.
Meeting.
When there is no loss, the Company authorizes the Board of Dirq
to pass a resolution agreed by the majority of attending directorg
meeting attended more than two thirds of directors to, in whole JAmended pursuant t
Newly added. part, distribute the statutory surplus resetimited to the part of Article 241 of
exceeding twentfive percent of the paidp capital) and the capital Company Act.
reserve conforming to the requlations of Company Act in cash,
propose it to the last Shareholders' Meeting.
- — ]
These Articles of Association was concluded on August 21, 1996. These Artlgles of Association was concluded on August 21, 199
- The first amendment was made on December 9, 2002.
The first amendment was made on December 9, 2002.
The second amendment was made on Dées 24, 2002.
The second amendment was made on December 24, 2002. .
. The third amendment was made on June 30, 2003.
The third amendment was made on June 30, 2003.
The fourth amendment was made on June 30, 2004.
The fourth amendment was madeJume 30, 2004. :
he fifth The fifth amendment was made on August 1, 2005.
Article 28 The fifth amendment was made on August 1, 2005.

The sixth amendment was made on September 3, 2007.
The seventh amendment was made on November 15, 2012.
The eighth amendment was made on December 7, 2012.

The ninth amendment was made on M8y 2013.
The tenth amendment was made on May 15, 2015.

The eleventh amendment was made on June 21, 2016.

The sixth amendment was made on September 3, 2007. tirﬁggct)?zcrﬁgi;r?feint
The seventh amendment was made on Novemb&012,

The eighth amendment was made on December 7, 2012.
The ninth amendment was made on May 13, 2013.
The tenth amendment was made on May 15, 2015.

The eleventh amendment was made on June 21, 2016.

The twelfth amendment was made on June 10, 2019.
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Attachment 6

EZCONN CORPORATION
Comparison Table onAmendments to thete Operational procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets

Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

Applicationscope of assets:

Application £ope of assets:

n Investment in stock, government bonds, corporate bonds, (1) Investment in stock, government bonds, corporate bonds|
financial bonds, negotiable securities in recognition of fun financial bonds, negotiable securities in recognition of fun
depository receip&and call(put) warrant, beneficial depository receiptand call(put) warrant, beneficial
securities and assbacked securities etc. securities and assbacked securities etc.
(1 Real estate (includg land, house and building, investment|(ll) Real estate (includ@gland, house and building, investment|
property,land use rightinventory in construction industry) property, inventory in construction industry) and equipmel Text amendhent
and equipment. 3 (1 Memb_ership certificate. _ _ according to Article
Article 2 (mny Membgrshlp certificate. _ _ (V) I_ntanglble assets SU(_:h as patent righpyrighttrademark 3 of the Guidelines
(IV)  Intangible assets such as patent righpyrighttrademark right and chartered right etc. (Below texts )
right and chartered right etc. V) Right-of-use assets. omitted)
V) Creditor's rights to fiancial institution (including (VI Creditor's rights tdinancial institution (including
receivables, negotiations and discounts, loan, overdue receivables, negotiations and discounts, loan, overdue
receivables). receivables).
(\4) Derivatives. (Vi Derivatives.
(VII)  Assets acquired or disposed through merger, division, (VIII)  Assets acquired or disposed through merger, division,
acquisition or assignment of share pursuant to law. acquisition or assignment of share pursuant to law.
(VIII)  Other important assets. (IX) Other important assets.
Terms definitions: Terms definitiors:
() Derivatives: means the forward contract, option contract (1) Derivatives: means the forward contract, option contract,
futures contract, leverage contract, exchange contract, ¢ futures contract, leverage contract and exchange contrac
the compound contract composing theceding whose values are derived fragpecific interest rate, price of
instruments etc., whose values are derived from assets, financial instruments, commodity pricexchange rategrice
interest rate, exchange rate, index or other interests etc or rate indexcredit rating or credit index, or other variable:
The socalled forward contract excludes the insurance the portfolio of aforesaid contracts, or the combined contr]
contract, performance contract, afsades service contract or structured notes embedded with derivativesTéte.
long-term lease @ntract and longerm purchase (sales) so-called forward contract excludes the insurance contraci Text amendment
Article 3 contract. performance contract, aftsales service contract, loigrm | according to Article
() Assets acquired or disposed through merger, division, lease contract and lortgrm purchase (sales) contract. 4 of the Guidelines.
acquisition or assignment of share pursuant to law: meg (ll) Assets acquired or disposed through merger, division,

the assets acquired or disposed through merger, divisio
acquisition pursuant to Enterpriséergers and
Acquisitions Act, Financial Holding Company Act, Law
Governing the Mergers of Financial Institutions or other
laws, or assignment of share of other company (hereing
referred to as assignment of share) by issuing new shar

pursuant to Pagraph 8, Article 156 of Company Act.

acquisition or assignment of share pursuant to law: mean
assets acquired or disposed through mergeisidivor
acquisition pursuant to Enterprises Mergers and Acquisitis
Act, Financial Holding Company Act, Law Governing the
Mergers of Financial Institutions or other laws, or assignm|
of share of other company (hereinafter referred to as

assignment oftgre) by issuing new shares pursuant to 3 ¢
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Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

(i Related party, subsidiaries: shall be determined accordi Article 156 of Company Act.
to the provisions of Securities Issuer Financial Report | (Ill)  Related party, subsidiaries: shall be determined according
Preparation Standards. the provisions of Securities Issuer Financial Report

(V) Professional appraiser: means the real estate appraiser Preparation Standards.
other practitioners egaged in the appraisal of real estate| (IV)  Professional appraiser: means the real eafgeaiser or
and equipment pursuant to law. other practitioners engaged in the appraisal of real estate

V) Date of event: means the transaction signature date, equipment pursuant to law.
payment date, commission date, date of transfer, date g (V) Date of event: means the transaction signing day, paymel|
board resolution or other dates sufficiently confirming th day, commission day, transfer day, date of board resolutic
transaction objgand transaction amount etc., whichevel other days sulfficiently confining the transaction object anc
is earlier. But if the investment needs to be approved by, transaction amount etc., whichever is earlier. But if the
competent authority, it means the aforesaid days or the investment needs to be approved by competent authority,
of receiving approval from competent authority, whicheyv, means the aforesaid days or the day of receiving approva
is earlier. from competent authority, whichever is earlier.

(\4) Laws and decrees or compet# authority: means the (Vl)  Investment in mainland region: means the investment
laws and decrees of the Republic of China or the engaged by Investment Commission of Ministry of Econo
government agency of the Republic of China. Affairs in mainland region or the investment engaged in

(vin Thesec al | ed firecent financi mainland pursuant to Measures for Technical Cooperatiof
Procedures: means the financial statenaenitedcertified Licensing.
or approved by the accountgpublicly pursuant to law (VIl)  Professional investor: mes the financial holding company|
before the company's acquisition or disposal of assets. bank, insurance company, securities financial company, t|

(V) Net value: means the shareholders' equity certified or enterprise, securities dealer running own or underwriting
approved by the accountant in recent financial report of business, futures trader running own business, securities
Company. If the financial report of the Company is investment trust enterprise, securities gtugent consulting
prepaed according to International Financial Reporting enterprise and fund management company that establish
Standards, the stalled net value means the equity pursuant to law and under the administration of local finai
attributable to owners of parent company recorded in th competent authority.
balance sheet as stipulated in the Securities Issuer (VII)  Stock exchange: domestic stock exchange, means the Tg
Financial Report Preparation Standards. Stock Exchange Corporation; foreignat@xchange, meang

(IX) (X) Regarding the stipulation of ten percent of total assg any organized stock exchange market under the
it shall be calculated according to the total assets amou administration of competent authority in charge of securiti
the recent individual financial report as stipulated in the in such country.

Securities Issuer Financial Report Preparation Standard (IX)  Business place of securities dealer: business place of doi
securities dealer, means the place in whichrifiesidealer
sets counter for transaction pursuant to Administrative
Measures for Securities Transaction in Business Place of
Securities Dealer; business place of foreign securities de;
means the business place of the financial institution runni
searities business and under administration of foreign
competent authority in charge of securities.

X) Laws and decrees or competent authority: means the law|
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Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

X1)

(X1

o)

and decrees of the Republic of China or the government
agency of the Republic of China.

The secalledir ecent financi al st
Procedures: means the financial stateraeitedcertified or
approved by the accountant publicly pursuant to law befo
the company's acquisition or disposal of assets.

Net value: means the shareholders' equityfesator
approved by the accountant in recent financial report of th
Company. If the financial report of the Company is prepar
according to International Financial Reporting Standards,
so-called net value means the equity attributable to owner
parent company recorded in the balance sheet as stipulat
the Securities Issuer Financial Report Preparation Stande
Regarding the stipulation of ten percent of total assets, it
be calculated according to the total assets amount in the
recent imividual financial report as stipulated in the
Securities Issuer Financial Report Preparation Standards

Article 4

Procedures for assessment on the acquisition or disposal of asse

V)

For the acquision or disposal of real estate or equipment,
apart from those transacted with government agency, buil
private land or leased land, or acquired or disposed for
business use, if the transaction amount thereof reaches tq
twenty percent of paidp capitalof the Company or over
NT$300 million, the appraisal report issued by profession
appraiser shall be first acquired before the date of event,
shall comply with the following rules:

When the limited price, specified price or special price is
taken ageference for the transaction price due to special
reasons, such transaction shall first be proposed to and
passed by board resolution, in case of change of transact
conditions in the future, the foregoing procedures shall alg
apply accordingly.

Appraisals by at least 2 professional appraisers shall be
required for transaction with amount in excess of NT$1
billion.

If the appraisal results of professional appraiser have any
of the following circumstances, except that all appraisal
results of acquim assets are higher than the transaction
amount, or all appraisal results of disposed assets are lov|
than the transaction amount, accountants shall be appoin

to handle according to No. 20 regulations of the Statemen

Procedues for assessment on the acquisition or disposal of asset

0]

For the acquisition or disposal of real estate, equipmeits
right-of-use assetspart from those transacted with
domesticgovernment agency, built on private land or leas
land,or acquisiion or disposal of equipment or its
right-of-use asset®r business use, if the transaction amou
thereof reaches to twenty percent of pajcapital of the
Company or over NT$300 million, the appraisal report
issued by professional appraiser shalfite acquired before
the date of event, and shall comply with the following rule
When the limited price, specified price or special price is
taken as reference for the transaction price due to specia
reasons, such transaction shall first be proposeddo
passed by board resolutighgereafter, the same shall apply
in case of change of transaction conditions.

Appraisals by at least 2 professional appraisers shall be
required for transaction with amount in excess of NT$1
billion.

If the appraisal resudtof professional appraiser have any
one of the following circumstances, except that all apprais
results of acquired assets are higher than the transaction
amount, or all appraisal results of disposed assets are loy
than the transaction amount, accaunt$ shall be appointed

to handle according to No. 20 regulations of Statement of

Text amendment
according to
Article 5, 9 and 11
of the Guidelines.
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Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

(I

(i)

Auditing Standards issued byetlAccounting Research and
Development Foundation of the Republic of China, and

express specific opinions on the reasons for difference an
the appropriateness of transaction price:

(1) The difference between appraisal results and
transaction amount reachesoter twenty percent of
the transaction amount.

(2) The difference between the appraisal results of two (
more professional appraisers reaches to over ten
percent of the transaction amount.

The date of report issuing by professional appraiser shall

be overthree months later than the contract date. Howeve

the opinion of the original appraiser may be acceptable w

the opinion is based on the same officially value publishe

within 6 months.

For the acquisition or disposal of negotiable securities,

beforet he date of event, the

financial statement audited, certified or approved by the
accountant shall be obtained as the reference for apprais
transaction price, furthermore, if the transaction amount
reaches to twenty percent oktpaidup capital of the
company or over NT$300 million, the accountant shall be
appointed to give opinion on the rationality of transaction
price prior to the date of event, if expert's report is adopte
the accountant shall handle pursuant to No. 20latigns of
the Statement on Auditing Standards issued by the

Accounting Research and Development Foundation.

However, the abovenentioned requirements do not apply |

transactions of negotiable securities transacted actively o

the open market, or thosegulated by the Financial

Supervisory Commission.

If the transaction amount of acquisition or disposal of

membership certificate antangible assets reaches to twen

percent of paielp capital of the company or over NT$300

Million, except for the transdion with government agency,

the accountant shall be appointed to give opinions on the

rationality of transaction price before date of event, and th
said accountant shall handle pursuant to No. 20 regulatio
of the Statement on Auditing Standards issogthe

Accounting Research and Development Foundation of thq

Republic of China.

(In

()

Auditing Standards issued by the Accounting Research al
Development Foundation of the Republic of China, and
express specific opinions on the reasons for difference ar
theappropriateness of transaction price:

(1) The difference between appraisal results and
transaction amount reaches to over twenty percent ¢
the transaction amount.

(2) The difference between the appraisal results of two |
more professional appraisers reachesvir ten
percent of the transaction amount.

The date of report issuing by professional appraiser shall

be over three months later than the contract date. Howev,

the opinion of the original appraiser may be acceptable w

the opinion is based on tharse officially value published

within 6 months.

For the acquisition or disposal of negotiable securities,

before the date of event,

financial statement audited, certified or approved by the
accountant shall be obtained as tekerence for appraising
transaction price, furthermore, if the transaction amount
reaches to twenty percent of the pajfu capital of the
company or over NT$300 million, the accountant shall be
appointed to give opinion on the rationality of transaction
price prior to the date of event, if expert's report is adopte
the accountant shall handle pursuant to No. 20 regulation
the Statement on Auditing Standards issued by the

Accounting Research and Development Foundation.

However, the abovenentioned regvements do not apply to

transactions of negotiable securities transacted actively o

the open market, or those regulated by the Financial

Supervisory Commission.

If the transaction amount of acquisition or disposal of

intangible assetsr its rightof-useassets or membership

certificatereaches to twenty percent of paid capital of the
company or over NT$300 million, except for the transacti(
with domestiogovernment agency, the accountant shall be
appointed to give opinions on the rationality of ti@rt®on
price before date of event, and the said accountant shall

handle pursuant to No. 20 regulations of the Statement o

Auditing Standards issued by the Accounting Research al

Development Foundation of the Republic of China.
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Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

(IV)

V)

(V1)

(VI

The calculation of the transaction amounts mentioned in
preceding 3 subparagraphs shall be subject to the provisi
of Article 11, andthesc al | ed fAone yedar
to be counting back for one year from the date of event of
such transaction, but the part for which the appraisal repg
i ssued by professional apg
has been obtained pursuant to these Procedures may be
excluded.

For theacquisition or disposal of assets through the auctig
procedures of the court, t
opinion may be replaced by the supporting documents iss
by the court.
For the obtained appraisal report or opinion of accountant
lawyeror securities underwriter, the concerned profession
appraiser and its appraising personnel, accountant, lawye
securities underwriter shall not be the related party to the
transaction party.

For assets acquisition or disposal between the relateg pa
apart from going through relevant resolution procedures g
stipulated in this article and Article 9 and assessment on
rationality of transaction conditions etc., if the transaction
amount thereof in excess of twenty percent of total assets
the canpany, appraisal report issued by professional
appraiser or accountant's opinion shall also be obtained
pursuant to this article. The calculation ofcadled
transaction amount shall be subject to the provisions in
Subparagraph 4 of this article.

(IV)

(V)

(V1)

=

N>

|w

(V1)

The calculation of the traaction amounts mentioned in
preceding 3 subparagraphs shall be subject to the provisi
of Article 11, andthesc al | ed fione year
to be counting back for one year from the date of event ol
such transaction, but the part for which #ppraisal report
i ssued by professional api
has been obtained pursuant to these Procedures may be
excluded.

For the acquisition or disposal of assets through the aucti
procedures of the court, the appraisal report oo aca t a |
opinion may be replaced by the supporting documents iss
by the court.

For the obtained appraisal report or opinion of accountant
lawyer or securities underwriter, the concerned professiof
appraiser and its appraising personnel, accourlgamger or
securities underwriteshall comply with the following rules
Has not been sentenced to a set term of imprisonment fol
over one year due to the violation of Securities Exchange
Act, Company Act, Banking Act, Insurance Act, Financial
Holding Compay Act, Business Accounting Act, or due to
fraud, breach of faith, embezzlement, forging documents
criminal behaviors in business. Except for three years afte
the imprisonment has completed, expiry of probation or
pardon.

Must not be the related pamy substantial related party to
the transaction party.

If appraisal reports issued by more than two professional
appraisers shall be obtained, different professional apprai
or appraising personnel shall not be the related parties or
substantial relatedarties mutually.

For assets acquisition or disposal between the related pa
apart from going through relevant resolution procedures ¢
stipulated in this article and Article 9 and assessment on 1
rationality of transaction conditions etc., if thartsaction
amount thereof in excess of twenty percent of total assets
the company, appraisal report issued by professional
appraiser or accountant's opinion shall also be obtained
pursuant to this article. The calculation ofcadled
transaction amourghall be subject to the provisions in

Subparagraph 4 of this article.
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Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

Procedures for acquisition or disposal of real estate and equipme

Procedures for acquisition or disposal of real eseigipment or its

0] Acquisition or disposal of real estate: right-of-use assets
1. The acquisition or disposal of real estate shall be assesse (1) Acquisition or disposal of real estagguipment or its
the execution unit and agreed by the President, and then right-of-use assets
submitted to the Board of Directors for approval. 1. The acquisition or disposal of real estate shall be assesse
2. The real estate of the Company and each subsidiaries us the executia unit and agreed by the President, and then
not for business purposhall not exceed 20% of the net submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.
value in the last financial statement. 2. The real estate or its rigf-use assets of the Company an
(1 Decisionmaking and authorization hierarchy eachsubsidiaryused not for business purpose shall not
exceed 20% of the net value in the lasafioial statement.
Delegation of authority 1)) Decisionmaking and authorization hierarchy Make amendment
ltem President Chairman| B027d of Delegation of authority aclzc;rsdikngtfﬁlggﬁl(
— - Directors Item President| Chairman B_oard of regulat%ns of the
Article 6 Acquisition or disposal of 5 _ _ Directors International
real estate Acquisition or disposal of . . . .
— - o] Financial Reporting
Acquisition or disposal of th¢ real estate
; o — - Standards and
equipment below NT$20 0 Acquisition or disposal of thq Article 3 of the
million (inclusive) equipment below NT$20 0 Standards
Acquisition or disposal of th¢ million (inclusive) )
equipment from NT$20 5 Acquisition or disposal of thg
million (exclusive) ~ NT$50 equipment from NT$20 o
million (inclusive) million (exclusive) ~ NT$50 0
Acquisition or disposal of th¢ million (inclusive)
equipment over NT$50 o} Acquisition or disposal of thg
million (exclusivg equipment over NT$50 o]
million (exclusive
Acquisition or disposal of o
; o
right-of-use assets
Procedures for acquisition or dispbe&derivatives: Procedures for acquisition or disposal of derivatives:
(Below texts omitted) (Below texts omitted)
(X) Internal auditors of the company shall regularly learn about th| (X) Internal auditors bthe company shall regularly learn about the
adequacy of internal control of derivatives transaction, audit the | adequacy of internal control of derivatives transaction, audit the
compliance of transaction department in engaging in the procedu compliance of transaction department in engaging in the procedu
for derivatives transaction on a monthly basis, and prepare the ay for derivatives transaction on a monthly basis, and prepare the ay Text amendment
Article 8 report; and written notice shall be served to each supervisor in cg report and written notice shall be served to each supervisor in caj according to Article

of major violation is found.

of major violation is found.

If the independent director has been set pursuant to Securities
Exchange Act, the written notice served to each supervisor as
mentioned in preceding paragraph sbalserved to the independen
director as well.

If the Audit Committee has been set pursuant to Securities Excha

22 of the Guiélines
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Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

Act, the provisions on the supervisor in paragraph 1 shall apply tq

Audit Committee.

Article 9

Procedures for related party transaction:

V)

(1

For assets acquisition or disposal between the Company
the related party, relevant resolution procedures as stipulz
in this article and assessment on the rationality of transac
conditions etc. shall be carried out pursuant to Article 4 an
this article. When judging whether the transaction object i
the related party, apart from paying attention to its legal
form, its substantial relationship shall also be considered.
For the Company'acquisition or disposal of real estate fro
the related party, or the acquisition or disposal of other as
other than real estate with the related party, if the transaci
amount is in excess of twenty percent of paidcapital of
the company, ten pegnt of total assets or NT$300 million,
except for transactions of purchase or sale of government
bonds or bonds with repurchase/reverse repo agreement
subscription or repurchase of money market fund issued
domestic securities investment trust entisg the
documents mentioned below shall be presented to the Bg
of Directors for approval and to the supervisor for
ratification before signing transaction contract and making
payments:

The purpose and necessity of, and expected benefit from
acquistion or disposal of such assets.

The reason for selecting the related party as transaction
object.

For the acquisition of real estate from the related party,
assess relevant materials on the rationality of expected
transaction conditions pursuant to theypsions of
Paragraph (Ill) and (1V) of this article.

Related party's original acquisition date and price,
transaction object, and relations between the company ar
related party etc.

The cash flow forecast of the next twelve months after the
month whenlte contract is expected to be signed, as well
assessment on the necessity of transaction and rationality
funds utilization.

The appraisal report issued by professional appraiser or

opinion of accountant obtained in accordance with the

Procedures for related party transaction:

0]

(m

For assets acquisition or disposal between the Company
the related party, relevant resolution procedurestipalated
in this article and assessment on the rationality of transag
conditions etc. shall be carried out pursuant to Article 4 ar
this article. When judging whether the transaction object i
the related party, apart from paying attention to isle
form, its substantial relationship shall also be considered.
For the Company's acquisition or disposal of real estaits
right-of-use assetsom the related party, or the acquisition
or disposal of other assets other than real estdts
right-of-use assetwith the related party, if the transaction
amount is in excess of twenty percent of pajdcapital of
the company, ten percent of total assets or NT$300 millio
except for transactions of purchase or salgophestic
government bonds or bda with repurchase/reverse repo
agreement or subscription or repurchase of money marke
fund issued by domestic securities investment trust
enterprise, the documents mentioned below shall be
presented to the Board of Directors for approval and to th
supevisor for ratification before signing transaction contra
and making payments:

The purpose and necessity of, and expected benefit from
acquisition or disposal of such assets.

The reason for selecting the related party as transaction
object.

For the aquisition of real estater its rightof-use assets
from the related party, assess relevant materials on the
rationality of expected transaction conditions pursuant to |
provisions of Paragraph (l1l) and (V) of this article.
Related party's original aacsition date and price,
transaction object, and relations between the company ar
related party etc.

The cash flow forecast of the next twelve months after the
month when the contract is expected to be signed, as we|
assessment on the necessity afigection and rationality of
funds utilization.

The appraisal report issued by professional appraiser or

Text amendment
according to Article
15, 16, 17 and 18 ¢

the Guidelines.
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Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

previous paragph.

7. Restrictions and other important terms of the transaction.

The calculation of the transaction amount in this paragraphs shal

subject to the provisions of Article 11, andthecsa | | ed Ao

period is defined to be counting back for one yeamfthe date of

event of such transaction, but the part that has been passed by B

of Directors and acknowledged by supervisor pursuant to these

Procedures may be excluded.

For acquisition or disposal of equipment for business use betwee

the Company athparent company or subsidiaries, Board of Direct

may authorize the Chairman to make a decision in advance withi
certain quota, and then propose to the most recent Board of Dire

Meeting for subsequent recognition.

When the Company has set thdependent director and proposed t

Board of Directors for discussion pursuant to provisions of this

article, opinions of each independent director shall be fully

considered, and any adverse opinion or qualified opinion of the
independent director shall Bpecified in the Minute Book of Board
of Directors Meeting.

When the Company has set the Audit Committee, matters shall b

acknowledged by the supervisor according to the provisions of th

paragraph shall be agreed by more than one second of all merhb

Audit Committee, if not, it may be agreed by more than two thirds

all directors, and the resolution of the Audit Committee shall be

specified in the Minute Book of Board of Directors Meeting. All
members of Audit Committee and all directors refercenht
preceding paragraph are calculated based on the actual appointn

() For acquisition of real estate from the related party, the
Company shall assess the rationality of transaction cost
according to the following methods:

1. Rel at ed part gedphisnecessarysfumast i g
interest and the cost borne by the buyer pursuant to law.
so-called necessary funds interest cost is calculated
according to the weighted average interest rate for the mg
borrowed by the company in the year of assets aciquisit
but it shall not be higher than the highest lending rate for
nonfinancial enterprises announced by the Ministry of
Finance.

2. If the related party once used such subject matter to set
mortgage for borrowing from a financial institution, the tot
valuein loan evaluation conducted by the financial

opinion of accountant obtained in accordance with the

previous paragraph.
7. Restrictions and other important terms of the transaction.
The calculation ofhe transaction amount in this paragraphs shall |
subject to the provisions of Article 11, andthecsa | | ed A o
period is defined to be counting back for one year from the date ¢
event of such transaction, but the part that has been passedriy B
of Directors and acknowledged by supervisor pursuant to these
Procedures may be excluded.
For the following transactions engaged between the Company an
parent company, subsidiaries, or the subsidiaries in which the
Company directly or indirectly holdsne hundred percent of
outstanding shares or total capidbard of Directors may authorize
the Chairman to make a decision in advance within a certain quot
and then propose to the most recent Board of Directors Meeting f
subsequent recognition:

(1) Acquisition or disposal of equipment or its righftuse assets
for business use.

(2) Acquisition or disposal of real estate rigiftuse assets for
business use.
When the Company has set the independent director and propos;
Board of Directors for discussion muant to provisions of this
article, opinions of each independent director shall be fully
considered, and any adverse opinion or qualified opinion of the
independent director shall be specified in the Minute Book of Boal
of Directors Meeting.
When the Cmpany has set the Audit Committee, matters shall be
acknowledged by the supervisor according to the provisions of th
paragraph shall be agreed by more than one second of all memb
Audit Committee, if not, it may be agreed by more than two thirds
all directors, and the resolution of the Audit Committee shall be
specified in the Minute Book of Board of Directors Meeting. All
members of Audit Committee and all directors referred to in
preceding paragraph are calculated based on the actual appointn

(1)) For acquisition of real estatg its rightof-use assetsom
the related party, the Company shall assess the rationalit)
transaction cost according to the following methods:

1. Rel ated partyds transactid

interest and the coborne by the buyer pursuant to law. Th
so-called necessary funds interest cost is calculated

according to the weighted average interest rate for the
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Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

institution on such subject matter, but the financial
institutiond6s actwual accun
matter shall reach to over seventy percent of the total valy
in loan evaluation and the pediof loan has been more tha
one year. However, such stipulations shall not apply if the
financial institution is the related party to a transaction pa

For combined purchase of land and house of the same subject m

assessment on transaction coarhe conducted according to any

method listed in preceding paragraphs for the land and house
respectively.

For acquisition of real estate from the related party, apart from

assessing on the real estate cost according to the provisions of th

paragraph,ite Company shall also appoint the accountant to revig
and give specific opinions.

Provided any one of the following circumstances, for acquisition ¢

real estate from the related party, the Company shall handle

according to preceding paragraphs, and ions of preceding
subparagraphs of this paragraph shall not apply:

1. The related party acquires real estate due to inheritance ¢
bestowal.

2. The related party has acquired the real estate by contract
conclusion for over five years according to the contratt d
of this transaction.

3. Sign joint construction contract with the related party, or
acquire the real estate by appointing the related party for
estate construction by means of consigned construction g
the owned land or consigned construction orlé¢ased land
etc.
If the results of appraisal as stipulated in preceding
paragraph are lower than the transaction price, the Comp
shall handle pursuant to Paragraph (V). Except for under
following circumstances, and objective evidences have be
proposed and specific rational opinions of professional reg
estate appraiser and accountant have been obtained:

1. If the related party acquires the raw land or leases the lan
for construction, it shall prove the conformance to any one
the following conditims:

(1) The raw land is assessed according to the method
stipulated in preceding paragraph, and the related
partyo6s total constructi

(V)

construction profit of the house exceeds the actual

money borrowed by the company in the year of assets
acquisition, but it shall not be higher than thehieist lending
rate for norfinancial enterprises announced by the Ministr,
of Finance.

2. If the related party once used such subject matter to set
mortgage for borrowing from a financial institution, the tot
value in loan evaluation conducted by the finahci
institution on such subject matter, but the financial
institutionés actual accur
matter shall reach to over seventy percent of the total vall
in loan evaluation and the period of loan has been more t
one year. Howear, such stipulations shall not apply if the
financial institution is the related party to a transaction pal

For combined purchage leaseof land and house of the same

subject matter, assessment on transaction cost may be conducte

according to any nikod listed in preceding paragraphs for the lanc
and house respectively.

For acquisition of real estage its rightof-use assetsom the related

party, apart from assessing on the real estais rightof-use assets

cost according to the provisionktbis paragraph, the Company sha
also appoint the accountant to review and give specific opinions.

Provided any one of the following circumstances, for acquisition ¢

real estater its rightof-use assetsom the related party, the

Company shall handlaccording to preceding paragraphs, and

provisions of preceding subparagraphs of this paragraph shall no

apply:
1.

The related party acquires real estatés rightof-use

assetslue to inheritance or bestowal.

2. The related party has acquired the realtegiaits
right-of-use assetsy contract conclusion for over five yeart
according to the contract date of this transaction.

3. Sign joint construction contract with the related party, or
acquire the real estate by appointing the related party for
estateconstruction by means of consigned construction or
the owned land or consigned construction on the leased |
etc.

4. The acquisition of real estate righf-use assets for busines:

use between the Company and parent company, subsidig

or the subsidiaés in which the Company directly or
indirectly holds one hundred percent of outstanding share

total capital.
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Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

transaction price. The smlled reasonable consttion
profit shall be the average operating margin of the
related partyds constru
years or the most recent gross margin in constructio
industry published by the Ministry of Finance,
whichever is lower.

The transaction casef other nofrelated parties on
other floors of the same real estate or in adjacent
regions within one year, with similar area and
equivalent conditions after assessment according to
due reasonable floors or regional price differences in
real estatéransaction practice.

The lease cases of other A@tated parties on other
floors of the same real estate within one year, with
equivalent transaction conditions after estimation
according to the due reasonable floor price differenc
in real estate leag®actice.

2. For the real estate purchased from the related party as pr
by the Company, its transaction conditions are equivalent
the transaction cases with other fretated parties in
adjacent regions within one year and the area is similar.

In principle, the transaction cases in adjacent regions mentioned

this paragraph take the cases transacted in the same or adjacent

and within 500 meters away from the transaction object or those
cases with similar announced present value; thealedsimilar area
means the area in transaction case of otherr@lated party is not
lower than fifty percent of the area of transaction object; and the
so-called within one year is defined to be counting back for one y¢
from the date of real estate acqtigsi this time.

V) For the Company's acquisition of real estate from the rela
party, if the results of assessment as prescribed in Paragr
(1) and (V) are lower than the transaction price, the
following matters shall be handled:

1. For the price differece between real estate transaction pri
and assessment cost, allocate special surplus reserve
pursuant to Paragraph 1, Article 41 of Securities Exchang
Act, and it shall not be distributed or transferred to capital
increase and shares allotment.

2. Supervisr shall handle pursuant to Article 218 of Compan
Act.

(2)

(3)

3. Handling circumstances pursuant to Item 1 and 2 shall be

(v) If the results of appraisal as stipulated in preceding
paragraph are lower than the transaction price, the Comp
shall handle pursuant to Raraph (V). Except for under the
following circumstances, and objective evidences have bg
proposed and specific rational opinions of professional re|
estate appraiser and accountant have been obtained:
1. If the related party acquires the raw land or ledke land
for construction, it shall prove the conformance to any on¢

of the following conditions:

(1) The raw land is assessed according to the method
stipulated in preceding paragraph, and the related
partyo6s tot al construct i
constrution profit of the house exceeds the actual
transaction price. The smalled reasonable constructio
profit shall be the average operating margin of the
related partyds constr ul
years or the most recent gross margin in tracton
industry published by the Ministry of Finance,
whichever is lower.

The transaction cases of other wrefated parties on
other floors of the same real estate or in adjacent
regions within one year, with similar area and
equivalent conditions afterssessment according to th
due reasonable floors or regional price differences ir
real estate transactia@m leasepractice.
2. For the real estate purchased from the related patte
real estate rightf-use assets acquired by leaseproved by
the Canpany, its transaction conditions are equivalent to t
transaction cases with other nrated parties in adjacent
regions within one year and the area is similar.
In principle, the transaction cases in adjacent regions mentioned
this paragraph takéeé cases transacted in the same or adjacent sf
and within 500 meters away from the transaction object or those
cases with similar announced present value; theatled similar area
means the area in transaction case of otherrelated party is not
lower than fifty percent of the area of transaction object; and the
so-called within one year is defined to be counting back for one ye
from the date o&cquiring real estate or its righf-use assethis
time.

V)

(2)

For the Company's acquisition of real ést its

right-of-use assetsom the related party, if the results of
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Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

reported to Shareholders' Meeting, and detailed transacti
contents shall be disclosed in the annual report and publi
prospectus.

If specialsurplus reserve is allocated pursuant to this paragraph,
Company shall wait until the assets purchased at a high price ha
been recognized in the loss from failing price, or is disposed or
properly compensated or reinstated, or if it is not unreaserab
confirmed by other evidences, such special surplus reserve may
be employed with the consent of competent authority.

For the Companydés acquisition
there are other evidences indicating that the transaistioot
conforming to regular businepsactice;it shall also be handled
pursuant to this paragraph.

assessment as prescribed in Paragraph (Ill) and (1V) are
lower than the transaction price, the following matters shg
be handled:

1. For the price difference between real estatis
right-of-use assetsansaction price and assessment cost,
allocate special surplus reserve pursuant to Paragraph 1,
Article 41 of Securities Exchange Act, and it shall not be
distributed or transferred to capital increase and shares
allotment.If the invesor adopting Equity Method for
appraising the companyds i
shall also allocate the special surplus reserve from such
allocation amount according to the investment proportion
and the provisions of Paragraph 1, Article 41 e€8ities

Exchange Act.

2. Supervisor shall handle pursuant to Article 218 of Compa
Act. If Audit Committee has been set pursuant to Securitie
Exchange Act, the preceding paragraph of this item appli¢
to independent director members of Audit Committee.

3. Handling circumstances pursuant to Item 1 and 2 shall be

reported to Shareholders' Meeting, and detailed transacti

contents shall be disclosed in the annual report and publil

prospectus.
If special surplus reserve is allocated pursuant to this paragheph,
Company shall wait until the assets purchazel@asedt a high
price has been recognized in the loss from failing price, or is
disposedbr terminated of lease contramtproperly compensated or
reinstated, or if it is not unreasonable as confirmedther
evidences, such special surplus reserve may only be employed w
the consent of competent authority.
For the Companyds ardtgrightofusd aissets
from the related party, if there are other evidences indicating that
transaction is not conforming to regular business practice, it shall
also be handled pursuant to this paragraph.

Article 11

Announcement and declaration procedures (applicable wken th
Company is a public company pursuant to the laws of the Repub
of China):

() If the acquisition or disposal of assets is under the followir
circumstances, the Company shall announce and declare|
relevant information at the website designated by Financi
Supervisory Commission within two days as of the date o

event:

Announcement and declaration procedures (applicable when the
Company is a public company pursuant to the laws of the Republ
of China):

() If the acquisition or disposal of assetsiigler the following
circumstances, the Company shall announce and declare
relevant information at the website designated by Financi|
Supervisory Commission within two days as of the date o

event:

Text amendment
according to Article
31 and 34 of the
Guidelines.

-48-



Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

Acquire or dispose real estate from interested party, or
acquire or dispose other assets other than real estate frorn
interested party and the transaction amount thereof reach
to twenty percet of company paidip capital, ten percent of
total assets, or over NT$300 Million. However, the
transactions of the purchases or sales of government bon
or bonds with repurchase/reverse repo agreement, or
subscription or repurchase of money market fissded by
domestic securities investment trust enterpaigeexcluded.
Merger, split, acquisition or assignment of share.

The loss in derivatives transactions reaches to the amoun
loss ceiling of all or individual contract as stipulated in
handling pocedures.

The type of assein acquisition or disposal is the equipmer
for business use, and the transaction object thereof is a
nonrelated party, and the transaction amount meets one
the following provisions:

(1) If the paidup capital of the Company iess than
NT$10 billion, the transaction amount is in excess of
NT$500 million.

(2) If the paidup capital of the Company is in excess of
NT$10 billion, the transaction amount is in excess of
NT$1 billion.

The Company acquires or disposes the real estate for

construction use by running construction business and thg

transaction object thereof is a no#lated party, and the
transaction amount is not in excess of NT$500 million.

For the real estate acquired by means of construction on

private or leased land, bouse distribution, sharing or saleg

in joint construction, the transaction amount expected to K

input by the company is not in excess of NT$500 million.

For the assets transaction other than those mentioned fro

Item 1 to Item 6, or disposal of creditorights by a financial

institution or the investment in Mainland China, the

transaction amount thereof is in excess of twenty percent
paidup capital of the company or NT$300 million. Except
for the following circumstances:

(1) Purchase or sale of goverant bonds.

(2) For professional investors, the transaction of negotig
securities irforeign and domestistock exchange or

business place of securities dealer; or the ordinary

Acquire or dispose real estate or its rigiftuse assetisom
a related party, or acquire or dispose other assets other tf
real estate or its righdf-use assets from a related party anc
the transaction amount thereof reaches to twenty percent
paid-up capital or ten percent of total assets of the compal
or over NT$300 million. However, the transactions of the
purchases or sales démesticgovernment bonds, or bonds
with repurchase/reverse repo agreement, or subscription
repurchase of money market fund issued by domestic
securities investment trust erpeseare excluded.

Merger, split, acquisition or assignment of share.

The loss in derivatives transactions reaches to the amour
loss ceiling of all or individual contract as stipulated in
handling procedures.

The acquisition or disposal of equipmentits rightof-use
assets for business use, and the transaction object therec
nonrelated party, and the transaction amount meets one |
the following provisions:

(1) If the paidup capital of the Company is less than
NT$10 billion, the transaction amouis in excess of
NT$500 million.

(2) If the paidup capital of the Company is in excess of
NT$10 billion, the transaction amount is in excess of
NT$1 billion.

The Company acquires or disposes the real estate

right-of-use asset®r construction use byunning

construction business and the transaction object thereof i

nonrelated party, and the transaction amount is not in exc

of NT$500 million;among them, the paidp capital reaches
to over NT$10 billion, the disposal of the completed real
estae constructed by itself is in a noelated party
transaction and with transaction amount in excess of NT$
billion.

For the real estate acquired by means of construction on

private or leased land, or house distribution, sharing or sg

in joint construdobn, and the transaction object is a

nonrelated partythe transaction amount expected to be

input by the company is not in excess of NT$500 million.

For the assets transaction other than those mentioned frg

Item 1 to Item 6, or disposal of creditor'ghts by a

financial institution or the investment in Mainland China, t
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Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

(I

(i)

(V)

V)

corporate bonds subscribed, raised or issued in
domestigprimary market and theegeral financial
bonds not involved in stock right; or the negotiable
securities subscribed according to the regulations of
Taipei Exchange as recommended by a securities dg¢
acting as the adviser of public company due to
underwriting business needs.

Puchase or sale of bonds with repurchase or revers
repo agreement, or subscription or repurchase of
money market fund issued by domestic securities
investment trust enterprise.

The transaction amounts stated in Paragraph (1) shall be
calculated accordingtthe following methods:

The amount of each transaction.

The cumulative amount of acquisition or disposal of similg
assets with the same counterparty within one year.

The cumulative amount of acquisition or disposal (separa
for the acquisition and di®sal) of real estate under the sarn
development plan within one year.

The cumulative amount of acquisition or disposal (separa
for the acquisitioranddisposal) of the same negotiable
securities within one year.

Thesecal | ed fione ynedtob& copnéngi ¢
back for one year from the date of transaction. However, {
part that has been announced pursuant to these Procedu
relevant laws and decrees may be excluded.

The Company shall declare the derivatives transactegeby
Companyandits domestic nofpublic subsidiaries as at the
end of previous month on a monthly basis, and such
declaration shall be input at the information declaration
website designated by Financial Supervisory Commission
a specific form before the 10th day of ewealendar month.
When the items due to be announced by the Company ag
required should be supplemented and corrected due to th
mistake or omission upon announcement, all items shall i
announced and declared again within two days as of the
of knowingsuch mistake or omission.

In case of acquisition or disposal of assets by the domest
non-public subsidiaries of the Company, and it shall be
announced and declared pursuant to the provisions of Art
11, the Company shall make announcement and déolara

3)

(m

(i)

transaction amount thereof is in excess of twenty percent
paid-up capital of the company or NT$300 million. Except
for the following circumstances:

(1) Purchase or sale dbmesticgovernment bonds.

(2) For professional investors, the transaction of negotig
securities in stock exchange or business place of
securities dealer; or the ordinary corporate bonds
subscribed, raised or issued in primary market and t|
general financial bonds nistvolved in stock right
(subordinated bonds excludedr subscription or
repurchase of securities investment trust funds or
futures trust fundr the negotiable securities
subscribed according to the regulations of Taipei
Exchange as recommended byealgities dealer
acting as the adviser of public company due to
underwriting business needs.

Purchase or sale of bonds with repurchase or revers
repo agreement, or subscription or repurchase of
money market fund issued by domestic securities
investment wst enterprise.

The transaction amounts stated in Paragraph (1) shall be
calculated according to the following methods:

The amount of each transaction.

The cumulative amount of acquisition or disposal of simile
assets with the same counterparty within peer.

The cumulative amount of acquisition or disposal (separa
for the acquisition and disposal) of real estatés
right-of-use assetsnder the same development plan withir
one year.

The cumulative amount of acquisition or disposal (separa
for the acquisition an disposal) of the same negotiable
securities within one year.

Thesec al | ed fione yearo peri(
back for one year from the date of transaction. However, |
part that has been announced pursuant to these Presextu
relevant laws and decrees may be excluded.

The Company shall declare the derivatives transacted by
company and its domestic npuoiblic subsidiaries as at the
end of previous month on a monthly basis, and such
declaration shall be input at theanfnation declaration

3)

website designated by Financial Supervisory Commissior
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Article/Section

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

instead; for the required announcement and declaration
standards applicable to the subsidiaries as stipulated in
Paragraph (I) of Article 11, regarding the stipulations on
reaching to twenty percenf paidup capital oten percent
of total assetst shall be subject to the paigh capital or
total assets of the Company.

a specific form before the 10th day of every calendar mor
When the items due to be announced by the Company as
required should be supplemented and corrected due to th
mistalke or omission upon announcement, all items shall b
announced and declared again within two days as of the
of knowing such mistake or omission.

In case of acquisition or disposal of assets by the domest
non-public subsidiaries of the Company, andhall be
announced and declared pursuant to the provisions of Art
11, the Company shall make announcement and declarat
instead,; for the required announcement and declaration
standards applicable to the subsidiaries as stipulated in
Paragraph (I) ofrticle 11, regarding the stipulations on
paid-up capital or total assets, it shall be subject to the
paid-up capital or total assets of the Company.

(v)

V)

Article 13

After the Company has annowttand declared the transaction
according to the provisions of Article 11, provided any one of the
following circumstances, the Company shall announce and declal
relevant information at the website designated by Financial
Supervisory Commission within twabays as of the date of event:

After the Company has announced and declared the transaction
according to the provisions of Article 11, provided any one of the
following circumstances, the Company shall announce and decla
relevant information at the welbsidesignated by Financial
Supervisory Commission within two days as of the date of event:

Text amendment.

() The changes, termination or release of the original contra| (I) The changes, termination or release of the original contra
() The merger, split, acquisition, or assignment of share are| (lI) The merger, split, acquisition, or assignment of share are
completed according to the schedule specified in contract completed according to the schedulecsiped in contracts.
(1 The changes in contents of the previangouncement and | (lIl) The changes in contents of the previous announcement &
declaration. declaration.
Amendment dates of these Procedures: Amendment dates of these Procedures:
These Procedures were formulated on June 24, 2012. These Procedures were formulated on June 24, 2012. Add the date and
Article 17 | The first amendment was made on June 30, 2014. The first amendment was made on June 30, 2014.

The second amendment was made on May 29, 2018.

The second amendment was made on May 29, 2018.

The third amendment was magie June 10, 2019.

times of amendmer
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Attachment 7

EZCONN CORPORATION
Comparison Table on Amendments to thee Operational Procedures for

Loaning of Company Fund

Before amendment After amendment Basis of
amendmen
Article 2
l.
(I The financing amount stated in
Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 1 means th
. cumulative balances of sha@grm financing o]
Article 2
I t he Com_pany. _For_ t_oh
(Il) The financing amount stated in Ioans_ to_the forelgn company in which direq
and indirectly holding one hundred percent
Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 1 means th . Text
; . . | wvotingsharepr such fore
cumulative balances of shdgdrm financing o . amendmen
granting of loans to the Compartlge amount .
the Company. For th " in
. . , . of loan thereof is limited to fifty percent of tl
loans to the foreign company in which direc net value accordance
and indirectly holding one hundred percent : ' with the law
. (IV) If responsible person of the Company
voting shares, the amount of loan thereof . =
. : violates the provisions of Paragraph 1 ol
limited to fifty percent of the net value. . —.
relevant proviso, he/she shall bear the joint
severakesponsibilitiedor repayment with th
borrower; in case of any damage to the
Company, he/she shall also bear the dam,
comgensation responsibility.
Article 4 Article 4
[ll. When the Company has set the indepenlll. When the Company has set the indepen
, . ) : , . ) : Text
director, opinions of each independent dire( director, opinions of each independent dire|
: . : : . .~ ~lamendmen
shall be fully considered upon discussion| shall be flly considered upon discussion ii in
Board of Directors Meeting, and thejpecific| Board of Directors Meetin@nd any adverse
L A - " s . accordance
opinions on consent or objection as well asopinion or qualified opinion of the independ with the law
reasons for objection shall be listed in th{ director shall be specified in the Minute Bo
record of Board of Directors Meeting. of Board of Directors Meeting.
. Article 5
Article 5 )
: VIII. Internal audit personnel of the Compa
VIII. Internal audit personnel of the Compa . .
. : shall audit the Procedures of Gragtiof Loans
shall audit the Procedures of Granting of Lc . . o
. X o and its execution situation at least every
and its execution situation at least every . X
; . guarter, and make a written record, in case
guarter, and make a written record, in cas¢ . . L )
P S . any signification violation is found, written
any signification violation is found, written ’ .
) : notice shall be served to each supervisat
notice shall be served tach supervisor . : . .
) . independent directommediately. Text
immediately.
IX. amendmen
IX. , . .
. ... | (V) Internal audit persarel of subsidiaries in
(V) Internal audit personnel of subsidiarie| ) :
. .| shall also audit the Procedures of Granting accordance
shall also audit the Procedures of Granting ! . o N
3 Loans and its execution situation at least ejwith the law

Loans and its execution situation at least e
quarter, and make a written record, in case
any signification violation is fond, written
notice shall be served to the audit unit of t
Company immediately, and audit unit of th
Company shall submit written materials t(
each supervisor.

quarter, and make a written record, in cas¢
any signification violation is found, written
notice shall be served to the audit unit of t
Company immediately, and audit unit of th
Company shall submit written materials t(
each supervisand independent director

If the Company has set the Audit Committe
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the provisions on the supervisor in precedi
paragraph shall apply to the Audit Canitiee.

Article 6

Article 6
(I If the granting of loans meeng one of the
following standards, it shall be announced |

(I1) If the granting of loans meet any one of| declared within two days as of the date g am;zrr?zj(:nen
following standards, it shall be announced | event; in
declared within two days as of the date g (IV) The socalled date of event in this accordance
event: paragraph means the signature date, payr with the law
date, date of board resolution or other daj
sufficiently canfirming the object and amoul
of granting of loans etc., whichever is earli|
Article 8
When the Company haet the independen]
director and when submitting these Proced
to Board of Directors Meeting for discussic
opinions of each independent director shal
fully consideredand any adverse opinion ¢
qualified opinion of the independent direct;
shallbe specified in the Minute Book of Bog
of Directors Meeting.
Article 8 If the Company has set the Audit Committe
When the Company has set the independ,  upon formulation or amendment of these
director and when submitting these Proced|Procedures, it shall be agreed by more thar Text
to Board of Directors Meeting foligtussion,| second of all members of Audit Committe¢ amendmen
opinions of each independent director shal| and proposed to Bod of Directors Meeting in
fully considered, and their specific opinions| for resolution, and the provisions in Paragri accordance
consent or objection as well as the reason; Il shall not apply. with the law
objection shall be listed in the record of Boj If it is not agreed by more than one seconc
of Directors Meeting. all members of Audit Committee as mentiot
in preceding paragraph, it may be agreed
more than two thirds of alligkctors, and the|
resolution of Audit Committee shall be
specified in the Minute Book of Board of
Directors Meeting.
All members of Audit Committee referred to
Paragraph Il and all directors referred to
preceding paragraph are calculated basec
the actual appointment.
Article 9: Amendment dates of these
Article 9: Amendment dates of these Procedures:
Procedures: These Procedures were formulated on Jun
These Procedures were formulated on Jun 2012. Add the dag
2012. The first amendment was made on June ! and times o
The first amendment was made on June ! 2014.
2014. The second amendment was made on Jun amendmen
The second amendment was made on Jun 2016.
2016. The third amendment was made on June
2019.
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Attachment 8

EZCONN CORPORATION
Comparison Table on Amendments to thee Operational Procedures for

Endorsements and Guarantee®

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendmen

Article 6
(V)
Opinions of each independent diter shal
be fully considered when making
endorsement and guarantees for others
their specific opinions on consent or

Opinionsof each independent director sk

endorsement and guarantees for otheard
any adverse opinion or qualified opinion

Article 6
(V)

be fully considered when making

objection as well as the reasons for
objection shall be listed in the record ¢
Board of Directors Meeting.

the independent director shall be specif
in the Minute Book of Board of Director
Meeting.

amendmen

Text

in
accordanc
with the
law.

Article 7
1.
Internal audit personnel shall audit th¢
Procedures of Making Endorsement a
Guarantees and its execution situation
least every quarter, and make a writte
record, in case of any signification
violationis found, written notice shall b
served to each supervisor immediatel
IV.

If the object of endorsement and guarar
meets the requirement originally but fa
to meet the requirement subsequently,
the amount of endorsement and guaratr

exceeds thetipulated limit due to the
change in the base for limit calculation,
amount of endorsement and guarantee
such object or the exceeding part shall
eliminated upon the expiry of period
stipulated in relevant contract, or the
financial unit shall rake a plan and have
approved by the President, and then s¢
the improvement plan to each supervis
and eliminate all of it within a certain
period and report to the Board of Direct(

Article 7
Il.
Internal audit personnel shall audit th¢
Proceduresf Making Endorsement ang
Guarantees and its execution situation
least every quarter, and make a writte
record, in case of any signification
violation is found, written notice shall b
served to each supervisor immediatel
Written notice served to el supervisor
shall be served to the independent dire
as well.
IV.
If the object of endorsement and guarat
meets the requirement originally but fa
to meet the requirement subsequently,
the amount of endorsement and guarai
exceeds the stipated limit due to the
change in the base for limit calculation,
amount of endorsement and guaranteg
such object or the exceeding part shall
eliminated upon the expiry of period
stipulated in relevant contract, or the
financial unit shall make dgn and have
approved by the President, and then s¢
the improvement plan to each supervis
and independent directand eliminate a
of it within a certain period and report {
the Board of Directors.
If the Company has set the Audit
Committee, thgrovisions on the
supervisor in preceding paragraph shg

Text
amendmer
in
accordanc
with the
law.

apply to the Audit Committee.
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Article 9
()  The balance of endorsement an
guarantee of the Company and subsidig
reaches to over fifty percent of the ne
value in the most recent financial staten
of the Company.

(I)  The balance of endorsement an
guarantee of the Company and subsidig
to a single enterprise reaches to ove
twenty percent of the net value in the m
recent financial statement of the Canp.
(1) The balance of endorsement an
guarantee of the Company and subsidig
to a single enterprise reaches to ove
NT$10 million, and the total balance o

endorsement and guarantee, lbegn
investment and granting of loans to su
enterprise reaches twer thirty percent o
the net value in the most recent financ

statement of the Company.

(IV) The newly added amount of
endorsement and guarantee of the
Company or subsidiaries reaches to NT]
million and over five percent of the ne
value in the most reogfinancial stateme

of the Company.

(V) If the subsidiaries of the Company
not a domestic public company and thg
are matters shall be announced and
declared by such subsidiaries pursuan
laws and decrees or the provisions of {

preceding four paragphs of these
Procedures, the Company shall make
announcement and declaration insted
(V1) Contents of announcement and
declaration are subject to the regulation
relevant laws and decrees or governm

department.

Article 9
()  The Company shall announaad
declare the balance of endorsement a
guarantee of the Company and subsidig
in the last month before the tenth day
each calendar month.

(1)  If the endorsement and guarants
meet any one of the following standards
shall be announced and declavathin

two days as of the date of event:
1. The balance of endorsement and
guarantee of the Company and subsidig
reaches to over fifty percent of the ne
value in the most recent financial staten
of the Company.
2. The balance of endorsement and
guarante of the Company and subsidiar
to a single enterprise reaches to ove
twenty percent of the net value in the m
recent financial statement of the Compg
3. The balance of endorsement and
guarantee of the Company and subsidig
to a single enterpriseaches to over
NT$10 million, and the total balance o
endorsement and guarantbepk amount;
of investment by adopting Equity Methg
and granting of loans to such enterprig
reaches to over thirty percent of the n(
value in the most recent financial tetiamen
of the Company.
4. The newly added amount of
endorsement and guarantee of the
Company or subsidiaries reaches to NT]|
million and over five percent of the ne
value in the most recent financial staten
of the Company.
1 If the subsidiaries of the Corapy
is not a domestic public company and th
are matters shall be announced and
declared by such subsidiaries pursuan
laws and decrees or the provisions o
Subparagraph 4 of preceding paragrap
these Procedures, the Company shall n
the announament and declaration insteg
(IV) The socalled date of event in thi
paragraph means the signature date
payment date, date of board resolution
other days sufficiently confirming the
object and amount of endorsement ar
guarantee etc., whichever is eatlier

Text
amendmer
in
accordanc
with the
law.
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Article 12
When the Company has set the
independent director and when submitt

Article 12

When the Cmpany has set the
independent director and when submitt
the Procedures of Making Endorseme
and Guarantees to Board of Directors
Meeting for discussion pursuant to thg
provisions of preceding paragraph,
opinions of each independent director s
be fuly consideredand any adverse

opinion or qualified opinion of the
independent director shall be specified
the Minute Book of Board of Directors|

Meeting.
If the Company has set the Audit

the Procedures of Making Endorseme - = Text
g Committee, upon formulation or
and Guarantees to Board of Directors : amendmer|
) . . amendment of the Procedures of hak )
Meeting for discussion pursuant to the : in
9 . Endorsement and Guarantees, it shall
provisions of peceding paragraph, accordanc
L ! - agreed by more than one second of 4~
opinions of each independent director s - - with the
) . o members of Audit Committee, and
be fully considered, and their specific ; ) law.
o L proposed to Board of Directors Meeting
opinions on consent or objection as wel . — >
o : resolution, and the provisions in Paragr
the reasons for objection shall be listed Il shall not appl
the record of Board of Directors Meetin| , ., . Y.
If it is not agreed by more than ®@seconc
of all members of Audit Committee as
mentioned in preceding paragraph, it n
be agreed by more than two thirds of 4
directors, and the resolution of Audit
Committee shall be specified in the Min
Book of Board of Directors Meeting.
All membes of Audit Committee referre
to in Paragraph Ill and all directors refer
to in preceding paragraph are calculat
based on the actual appointment.
Article 13: Amendment dates of these Article 13: Amendment gates of these
. Procedures:
Procedures:
These Procedures were formulated on |
These Procades were formulated on Ju
24, 2012. Add the
24, 2012. !
) The first amendment vgamade on May 1] date and
The first amendment was made on May| .
2013 2013. times of
) The second amendment was made on Jamendmer
The second amendment was made on 30. 2014
30, 2014. The third amendment was made on Jy
10, 2019.
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Appendix I

Articles of Incorporation of EZCONN
CORPORATION

Chapter 1: General Principles

Article 1: The Gmpany is incorporated pursuant to the regulations of Company Act and is named
asEZCONN CORPORATION

Article 2: Businesses operated by the Company are as follows:

1. Manufacturing, assembly, processing and buying and selling of all kinds of optical
fibers, optical fibe lead, jumper wire, fiber optic connector, socket, optical fiber
splice closure and distribution cabinet.

2. Processing and assembly businesses of communication optoelectronic interface
products and communication network equipment.

3. Processing, manufacturingnd assembly of precision metal parts and electronic
products for use as electronic components

4. Processing of all kinds of electronic, plastic parts, automobile parts and motorcycle
parts.

5. Buying and selling, import and export of all kinds of telecommuianat(electronic)
equipment (including radio transceiver and the motor with launching performance).

Import and export trading businesses regarding the products in preceding paragraphs
Import and export trading businesses of direct broadcast satellitsitabereceiver.
CC01080 Electronic Parts and Components Manufacturing.

F119010 Wholesale of Electronic Materials.

10. F219010 Retail Sale of Electronic Materials.

11. 2799999 All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law, except those
that are sbject to special approval.

Article 3: The company sets parent company in Taipei City, wietessarythe branch may be
incorporated both at home and abroad with the board resolution and approval of
competent authority.

Article 4: The Company may provide guarantee exterratlyording to business needs.

Article 5: The Company may make foreign reinvestment according to business necessity, and ma
become the limited partner of other companies per board resolution, and the total
investment amount thereof may not be restricted by relevantestment quotas as
provided in Article 13 of Company Act.
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Chapter 2 Shares

Article 6: The capital on stock of the Company is NT$1 billion in 100 million shares with nominal
amount par value of NT$10 per share. The Board of Directors is authorized to issue
them inbatches.

NT$100 million is reserved from the total capital on stock in preceding paragraph for
the exercise of stock option when issuing the stock option certificate, warrant bond
and preferred shares with warrants etc., totally ten million shares wiiNper
share, and it may be issued in bathes.

Article 7: After the stock has become listed or OWée-Counter, where the Company plans to
transfer the shares bought back pursuant to law to the employees, and it is planned t
transfer them to employees at the primeer than the average price in actual shares
buyback pursuant to relevant laws and decrees, then it shall only be handled after the

resolution by the | ast Sharehol der sdé Me
After public offering, pursuant to Article 56 of A Gui del iRaigeandf or
| ssue Negotiable Securitieso, when the
not restricted by the employee stock option certificate as stipulated in Article 53 of
AGui delines for | ssuer to Rai seonpbed I

handled after the resolution by the last Shareholders' Meeting.

If the Company intends to cancel public offering, it may only handle matters regarding
cancellation of public offering according to Article 156 of Company Act.

The shares of the Compaare registered shares signed or sealed by more than three
directors, and they will be issued after certification by the competent authority or the
issue registration agency approved by it. After public offering by the Company, the
shares issued may beempted from printing share certificate, but they shall be
registered in centralized securities depository enterprise.

Provisions in preceding paragraph are applicable to the production and issue of
corporate bonds.

Measures for handling stock affairs oetompany are subject to relevant laws and
decrees and the regulations of competent authority.

Article 8: The registration of share transfer shall not be carried out within thirty days before General
Meeting, within fifteen days before Interim Shareholders’ Meetingyithin five days
before the base date on which the Company decides to distribute dividend and bonu:
or other benefits. After public offering by the Company, the registration of share
transfer as mentioned in preceding paragraph shall not be carriedtlontsixty days
before General Meeting and within thirty days before Interim Shareholders' Meeting.

Chapter 3 Shareholdersdo M

Article 9: Shareholders' Meeting is divided into general meeting and interim meeting, the general
meeting shall be convene onceealyand convened within six months after the end of
every accounting year; and the interim meeting may be convened pursuant to relevan
laws and decrees when necessary.
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Article 10:

Article 11:

Article 12:

Article 13:

Article 14:

Article 15;

After public offering,the date, location and subject of convocation of the meetial s
be notified to each shareholder thirty days before convening General Meeting and
fifteen days before convening Interim S

When a shareholder cannot attend the Shareholders’ Meeting for a reason, sucl
shareholder mayjssue the power of attorney printed by the Company to specify the
scope of authorization to appoint the proxy to attend.

Apart from the shares without voting right as prescribed in Article 179 Company Act,
shareholders of the Company have one voting fayhe¢ach share.

Unless otherwise prescribed by relevant laws and decrees, the resolution of
Shareholders' Meeting shall be agreed by more than half of the voting rights of the
shareholders attending in person or by proxy and representing more than thalf of
total shares issued.

According to the regulations of competent authority, shareholders of the Company
may also exercise the voting right electronically, shareholders exercising the voting
right electronically will be deemed as attending in personyelegant matters thereof
shall be carrying out seldissessment pursuant to laws and decrees.

The Shareholders' Meeting shall be convened by the Chairman and the Chairman i
the chairperson, when the Chairman is absent, the Chairman may designate one
direcor as the proxy, if not, directors may elect one person as the proxy; if the
Shareholders' Meeting is convened by other entitled convenor other than the Board of
Directors, such entitled convenor shall act as the chairperson, when there are more
than two atitled convenors, one of them shall be mutually designated to preside.

All resolutions of a Shareholders' Meeting shall be recorded in the minutes signed or
sealed by the chairperson of Shareholders’ Meeting, and the minutes shall be
distributed to the sireholders within twenty days after the meeting. After public
offering by the Company, the distribution of minutes in preceding paragraph may be
made by announcement.

Chapter 4 Directors and Supervisors

The Company sets five to nine directors and twthitee supervisors with three years
of term of office, they will be elected by the Shareholders’ Meeting from the persons
with disposing capacity, and reappointment is acceptablecierted.

After public offering by the Company, among the aforesaid sefatiirectors, the
number of independent director shall be at least two and no less than one fifth of the
total seats of directors. The candidate nomination system as prescribed in 1 of Article
192 of Company Act will be adopted for the election of indeean directors.
Relevant matters regarding the acceptance and announcement etc. of the nomination c
independent director candidates shall be handled pursuant to the Company Act,
Securities Exchange Act and relevant laws and decrees. Independent dmedtors
norrindependent directors shall be elected concurrently, and election quota will be
calculated separately.

After public offering by the Company, the total shareholding ratio of all directors and
supervisors thereof are subject to the regulations ofisies regulatory authority.
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1 of Article 15:For the election of directors and supervisors, every share shall have the right to vote

Article 16:

Article 17:

Article 18:

Article 19:

equivalent to the number of directors and supervisors should be elected, it may elect
one person intensively or electveeal persons respectively, and the ones representing
votes will be elected.

When the director's number w&cancies reaches to one third of the total number or
all supervisors are removed, the Board of Directors shall convene the Interim
Shar ehol thg withid thityedays for byelection, and the term of office
thereof is limited to make up the term of office of the original directors or
supervisors. After public offering by the Company, Board of Directors shall convene
the I nteri m Srgaithia sixtyldayefor ;y@ectdre e t

The Company may buy liability insurance for the directors and supervisors within
their term of office for the compensation liability shall be borne within their scopes
of business execution.

Directors may establish éhBoard of Directors, and one Chairman and one Deputy
Chairman may be mutually elected with the consent of the majority of attending
directors in the meeting attended by more than two thirds of the directors, and the
Chairman acts on behalf of the Compaexternally. When the Chairman cannot
exercise its function and power when on leave or for a reason, its proxy shall be
handled pursuant to Article 208 of Company Act.

Each director and supervisor may be notified in writing, by email or fax when
convening he Board of Directors Meeting.

When a director cannot attend the Board of Directors Meeting for some reason,
he/she may issue the proxy statement and list the authorization scope in the subjec
of convocation to appoint other director to attend, but orextir can only represent

one other director.

If a director attenslthe meeting via video, it shall be deemed as attending in person.

Unless otherwise prescribed by Company Act, the resolution of Board of Directors
shall be agreed by the majority of attamglshareholders in a meeting attended by
the majority of shareholders.

The supervisor set by the Company is responsible for supervising all businesses of
the Company pursuant to laws and decrees. But after public offering, when the
Company is settingthe Audit Commi tteed pursuant t
Exchange Act, there is no need to set the supervisor; if the supervisor has been se
he/ she wil|l be removed certainly wupon
provisions on the supervishereof will also lose effect immediately.

Regarding the headcount, term of office, function and power, rules of procedure etc.
of Audit Committee, it shall be otherwise formulated in the Audit Committee
Organizational Regulations pursuant to the Publmm@any Audit Committee
Authority Exercising Measures.

-60-



Article 20:

Article 21:

Article 22:

Article 23:

Article 24:

Functions and powers of the supervisor are as follows:
1. Supervise the execution of corporate business.
2. Investigate business and financial conditions of the company.

3. Audit all kinds of book of tablesrdorms prepared by Board of Directors and
proposed to the Shareholders' Meeting.

4. Other functions and powers granted in accordance with the provisions of
Company Act.

For execution of duties of the Company by directors and supervisors of the Company
regadless of operating profit or loss, the Company shall pay regular compensations
such as transportation allowance and remuneration etc., and 8oBidectors is
authorized taletermine the their remuneration based on their degree of participation
in and vdue of contribution to the company operation and by referring to normal
standard of the industry. When surplus is available, compensation will be otherwise
distributed according to the provisions of Article 24 hereof.

Chapter 5 Managerial Officer

The conpany may set the managerial officer, whose appointment, dismissal and
remuneration will be subject to the regulations of Article 29 of Company Act.

The Company may empl@consultant through board resolution.

Chapter 6 Accounting

At the close of eachdtal year, the Board of Directors of the Company shall prepare
the following book of tables or forms and forward the same to supervisors for
auditing thirty days before convening the General Meeting, and submit the same to
the General Meeting for acknowlgaent.

(1) Business report;
(2) Financial statements; and
(3) Surplus distribution or loss effetting proposals.

If profits are available upon final settlement every year, the Company shall allocate
no |l ess than five percent as ndivapdrceny e e 6
as director and supervisorob6s compensa
Board of Directors, taxes shall be paid pursuant to law, and then ten percent shall be
allocated as the statutory surplus reserve, but it may be exemptesl statutory
surplus reserve has already reached the totalymahpital of the company; after the
balance thereof has been allocated or revolved as special surplus reserve pursuant |
laws and decrees or regulations of competent authority, then ibevdiccumulated

into the undistributed surplus, and Board of Directors may prepare surplus
distribution proposal to propose to Shareholders' Meeting for distribution of
reservation per resolution.
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Article 25:

Article 26:

Article 27:

Article 28:

If the Company had accumulated losses in previous yeprofits are available in

the current year and before allocating employee's compensation and director and
supervisor's compensation, the losses shall be covered first, and the balance therec
will be allocated according to the proportions mentioned in pregeparagraph;
besides, when employeeds compensation
of distribution include the employees of affiliated companies meeting certain
conditions.

The dividend policy of t he ht€andtiptarestg ass h ¢
the biggest foundation, and give considerations to factors such as industry conditions
faced by the company currently or in the future, stage of growth, future financial
planning, capital needs and planning of satisfying shareholideesh etc., under the
principle of di vidend equalization, S
than ten percent of tot al sharehol der
shall still be subject to the amount determined in the resolation S har eh o
Meeting.

Chapter 7 Supplemental Provisions

The articles of organization and working rules of the Company shall be otherwise
formulated by Board of Directors.

Matters not covered herein shall be handled pursuant to the Company Act and
relevant laws and decrees.

The conclusion or amendment of these Articles of Association shall be carried out
with the approval of competent authority.

These Articles of Association was concluded on August 21, 1996.
The first amendment was made on Decen®h@002.

The second amendment was made on December 24, 2002.
The third amendment was made on June 30, 2003.

The fourth amendment was made on June 30, 2004.

The fifth amendment was made on August 1, 2005.

The sixth amendment was made on September 3, 2007.
The seventh amendment was made on November 15, 2012.
The eighth amendment was made on December 7, 2012.
The ninth amendment was made on May 13, 2013.

The tenth amendment was made on May 15, 2015.

The eleventh amendment was made on June 21, 2016.

EZCONN CORPORATION
Chairman: Chen, Steve
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Appendix 2

Article 1:

Article 2:

Article 3:

EZCONN CORPORATION

Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings

In order to establish good Shareholders’ Meeting governance system and sounc
supervision function of the Company, and strengthen managemenofyrncts hereby
formulated these Rules pursuant to Article 5 of Listed Company Governance Best
Practice Principles of the Republic of China to comply with. The laws and decrees
mentioned in these Rules are the laws and decrees of the Republic of China.

Unless otherwise prescribed by laws and decrees or regulations, the rules of procedur
for Shareholders' Meetings of the Company shall be formulated according to these
Rules.

Unless otherwise prescribed by laws and decrees, Shareholders' Meeting of the
Company shall be convened by Board of Directors.

Upon convening the General Meeting, meeting handbook shall be prepared and eact
shareholder shall be informed thirty days in advance, shareholders holding less than on
thousand registered shares may be in&mby inputting the announcement at
mops.twse.com.tw thirty days i n advanc
Meeting, each shareholder shall be informed fifteen days in advance, and shareholder:
holding less than one thousand registered shares mayfdsened by inputting the
announcement at mops.twse.com.tw fifteen days in advance.

Notice and announcement shall specify the subject of convocation; if agreed by the
counterpart, the notice may be served in electronic way.

Appointment or dismissal of a réictor or supervisor; amendment to Articles of
Association; company dissolution, merge or division; or matters prescribed in each
subparagraph of Paragraph 1, Article 185 of Company Act; Article, 28ticle 436 of
Securities Exchange Act shall be listedthe subject of convocation; and shall not be
proposed as an Ad Hoc Motion.

Shareholders holding more than one percent of total outstanding shares of the limited
liability company may propose a General Meeting motion to the Company in writing.
But the notion is limited to one, if there is more than one motion, all of them will not be
included in the proposal. Besides, if the motion proposed by a shareholder has any on:
of the circumstances as prescribed in Paragraph 4, 1 of Article 172 of Company Act,
Board of Directors will not include it in the proposal. The Company shall announce the
accepted motion of shareholders, acceptance place and acceptance period before ti
book closure day before convening General Meeting; and the acceptance period thereo
shdl not be less than ten days. The motion proposed by a shareholder is limited to three
hundred words, those exceeding three hundred words will not be included in proposal;
the proposing shareholder shall personally or appoint other person to attend éha Gen
Meeting, and participate in the discussion of such motion.

The Company shall notify the proposing shareholder the handling result before the
notice day of convening Shareholders' Meeting, and list the motion conforming to the
provisions of this arti@ in the meeting notice. For the shareholder's motion not listed in
the proposal, Board of Directors shall describe the reasons therefor in the Shareholders
Meeting.
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Avrticle 4:

Article 5:

Article 6:

Article 7:

Upon every General Meeting, a shareholder may issue the proxy statement printed by
the Gmpany to specify the scope of authorization, so as to entrust the proxy to attend
the General Meeting.

A shareholder is limited to issue one proxy statement to appoint one proxy, and the
proxy statement shall be served to the Company five days beforeertogv
Shareholders' Meeting, in case of repeated proxy statement, the one served first sha
prevail. Except for announcing the cancellation of previous appointment.

After the proxy statement has been served to the Company, if a shareholder intends tc
attend the Shareholders' Meeting in person, such shareholder shall serve written notice
on canceling the proxy statement to the Company one day before convening the
Shareholders' Meeting; or voting right exercised by the attending entrusted proxy shall
prevail

The convening place of Shareholders' Meeting shall be at the place where the Compan:
locates in or convenient for shareholders to attend and suitable for convening

Shareholders' Meeting, and the meeting start time shall not be earlier than 9:00am in the
morning, nor later than 3:00pm in the afternoon; full consideration shall be given to the

opinions of independent director regarding the convening place and time.

The Company shall set autograph book for attending shareholder or the agent entruste
by shareholder (hereinafter referred to as shareholder) to sign in, or the attending
shareholder may submit the sign card instead of sign in.

The said accepted shareholder's reporting time shall be at least thirty minutes before
meeting start; the registratiolocation shall be marked explicitly, and sufficient
competent personnel shall be assigned for handling.

The Company shall deliver meeting handbook, annual report, certificate of attendance,
speech note, vote and other meeting materials to the sharehdttersling
Shareholders' Meeting; in case of director or supervisor election, the ballot shall be
attached otherwise.

Shareholders shall attend the Shareholders’ Meeting with certificate of attendance,
attendance sign card or other attendance certificeddisitor of proxy solicitation shall

bring identity supporting document for checking.

When a shareholder is the government or legal person, representative attending
Shareholders' Meeting is not limited to one person. When a legal person is entrusted tc
attend Shareholders' Meeting, it may only assign one representative to attend.

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by Board of Directors, the Chairman shall
preside the meeting, and the Deputy Chairman shall preside the meeting when the
Chairman is orkeave or unable to preside. If there is no Deputy Chairman or the Deputy
Chairman also is on leave or unable to preside, the Chairman shall designate one
managing director to preside; if the managing director is not available, designate one
director to preide, if the Chairman fails to designate the agent, the managing director or
directors will mutually designate one person to preside.

If the chairperson mentioned in preceding paragraph is a managing director or director,
such managing director or directehall have taken office for over six months and
understand the financial and business condition of the company. The same shall apply i
the chairperson is the representative of juridical person director.
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Article 8:

Article 9:

Article 10:

It is better that the Shareholders' Meeting comee by the Board of Directors is
attended by the majority of directors. If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by other
entitled convenor other than the Board of Directors, such entitled convenor shall preside
the meeting, when there are more than twttled convenors, one of them shall be
mutually designated to preside.

The Company may assign the appointed lawyer, accounting or relevant personnel tc
attend the Shareholders' Meeting.

Starting from accepting shareholders' registration, the Companytakellsound and
video recording the whole course of shareholder's registration process, meeting process
voting and counting process, and keep them for at least one year. But if a shareholde
files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of Company Act, theyldiekept until the end

of litigation.

The attendance of Shareholders' Meeting shall be subject to the calculation of shares
The attending shares shall be calculated according to the autograph book or the sigt
card submitted, plus the shares exercismgng right in writing or electronic way.
When it is time for meeting, the chairperson shall immediately make opening address,
but if the attending shareholders are not representing the majority of total outstanding
shares, the chairperson may announcepdstpone the meeting, and its times of
postponing is limited to two times, and the total time postponed shall not exceed one
hour. If attending shareholders are still not representing more than one third of the total
outstanding shares after postponing tiwo times, the chairperson will announce that
the meeting fails to be convened for lack of a quorum.

If there is still lack of a quorum but attending shareholders are representing more than
one third of the total outstanding shares after postponingwiortimes as stated in
preceding paragraph, a tentative resolution may be made pursuant to Paragraph 1
Article 175 of Company Act, and the tentative resolution shall be notified to each
shareholder to further convene Shareholders' Meeting within one month.

Before the end of the current meeting, if the attending shareholders are representing thi
majority of total outstanding shares, the chairperson will make a tentative resolution,
and propose it again pursuant to Article 174 of Company Act to Sharehd/dstshg

for voting.

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, its agenda shall be
determined by the Board of Directors, the meeting shall be proceeded according to the
scheduled agenda, and it shall not be changed unless sthietion of Shareholders'
Meeting.

If the Shareholders’ Meeting is convened by other entitled convenor other than the
Board of Directors, the provisions in preceding paragraph shall apply.

Before the end of official business discussion (including ad hotion) in the
scheduled agenda as prescribed in preceding two paragraphs, the chairperson may n
arbitrarily declare meeting adjournment without resolution; if the chairperson declares
the meeting adjournment by violating procedures, other members ad BbBRirectors

shall immediately assist attending shareholders to elect one person as the chairperso
with the consent of majority attending shareholders with voting rights pursuant to legal
procedure to continue the meeting.
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Article 11:

Article 12:

Article 13:

For the motion and amendmeat ad hoc motions proposed by shareholders, the
chairperson shall give opportunity for sufficient description and discussion, when it is
suitable for voting to decide, the chairperson may declare the stop of discussion anc
propose for voting to decide.

Before giving a speech, an attending shareholder shall first fill in speech note to specify
the speech topic, sharehol der és account
and account name, and the chairperson will decide its speech order.

If an attentchg shareholder only submits speech note but does not give a speech, it shall
be deemed as unspoken. In case of any discrepancy between speech contents and t
record in speech note, the speech contents shall prevail.

For the same motion, the speech ofrg\ahareholder shall not exceed two times and no
longer than five minutes per time unless with the consent of the chairperson; if the
speech of a shareholder violates the regulation or is beyond scope of motion, the
chairperson may stop its speech.

When amattending shareholder is giving a speech, unless agreed by the chairperson ant
speaking shareholder, other shareholders shall not interrupt the speech, and violato
shall be stopped by the chairperson.

When a legal person shareholder assigns more thamdpresentatives to attend the
Shareholders' Meeting, the same motion can only be spoken by one representative.
After the speech of an attending shareholder, the chairperson shall personally or
designate relevant personnel to reply.

The voting of Sharasiders' Meeting shall be subject to the calculation of shares.

For the resolution of Shareholders' Meeting, the number of shares of shareholders
without voting right will not be calculated into the total number of outstanding shares.

In respect of meetingnatters, if a shareholder itself has interested relationship and
thereby is suspected of damaging the interests of the Company, such shareholder sha
not join in the voting, nor exercise voting right on behalf of other shareholders.

The number of sharesgnot exercise voting right as prescribed in preceding paragraph
will not be calculated into the number of voting rights of attending shareholders.

Except for trust enterprise or the stock affairs agency approved by competent authority
in charge of securés, when one person is appointed by more than two shareholders,
the agency voting right thereof shall not exceed three percent of the total outstanding
shares with voting right, and the exceeding voting right will not calculated.

Every share of shareh@s of the Company has one voting right, except for the voting
right is restricted or voting right is not available pursuant to Paragraph 2, Article 179 of
Company Act.

Upon convening Shareholders' Meeting, the Company may exercise its voting right in
writing or electronic way; when exercising voting right in writing or electronic way, the
exercising method thereof shall be specified in Shareholders' Meeting convening notice.
Shareholders exercising voting right in writing or electronically shall be deawmed
attending General Meeting in person. But it shall be deemed as waiver regarding the
amendment of ad hoc motion and origina
hence the Company should avoid proposing the amendment of ad hoc motion and
original prgosals.
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Article 14:

Article 15;

If the voting right in preceding paragraph is exercised in writing or electronic way, the
declaration of intention thereof shall be served to the company two days before
convening Shareholders' Meeting, in case of repeated declarations obmtéimi one
served first shall prevail. Except for announcing the cancellation of previous declaration
of intention.

After a shareholder has exercised voting right in writing or electronic way, if intends to
attend the Shareholders' Meeting in person, sheneholder shall cancel the preceding
declaration of intention on exercising voting right in the same way as exercising voting
right two days before convening Shareholders' Meeting, or the voting right exercised in
writing or electronic way shall prevailf a shareholder exercises voting right in writing

or electronic way and entrusts a proxy through proxy statement to attend the
Shareholders' Meeting, the voting right exercised by the attending entrusted proxy shall
prevail.

Unless otherwise prescribbg Company Act or Articles of Association of the Company,
the voting of proposal shall be agreed and passed by the majority attending shareholder
with voting right. Upon voting, the chairperson or its designated personnel shall
announce the total votingghts of attending shareholders case by case.

The proposal will be deemed as passed if agreed by all attending shareholders per th
consultation of the chairperson, and the validity thereof shall be the same as voting table
in case of any disagreemente thoting method prescribed in preceding paragraph shall
be adopted for voting to decide.

When there is an amendment or replacement for the same proposal, the chairperson wi
decide its voting order together with the original proposal. If one of the mlspbs

been passed, the other proposals will be deemed as overruled, and voting therefor wil
no longer be necessary.

The scrutinizing and counting personnel of proposal voting will be designated by the
chairperson, but the scrutinizing personnel shatiftehareholder identity.

The vote counting for the voting or election proposal in Shareholders' Meeting shall be
carried out openly in the site of Shareholders' Meeting, and after the completion of vote
counting, the voting right results including statiat weight shall be announced on the
spot, and records shall be kept.

In case of director or supervisor election in Shareholders' Meeting, it shall be handled
according to relevant election procedures stipulated by the Company, and the electior
results ball be announced on the spot, including the list of elected directors and
supervisors and their weight in election.

The ballot of election matters mentioned in preceding paragraph shall be kept properly
after sealed and signed by scrutinizing personmal, ishall be kept for at least one
year. But if the General Meeting files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of Company Act,
they shall be kept until the end of litigation.

All resolutions of a Shareholders' Meeting shall be recorded in the minuted signe
sealed by the chairperson of the meeting, and the minutes shall be distributed to the
shareholders within twenty days after the meeting. The record and distribution of
minutes may be made in an electronic file.

The distribution of minutes mentioned mmeceding paragraph may be announced by
inputting it at mops.twse.com.tw.
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Article 16:

Article 17:

Article 18:

Article 19:

Article 20:

The minutes shall be recorded actually according to the meeting date, location, name o
chairperson, resolution method, essentials of discussion process and its results, durin
the duration of the Company, it shall be kept permanently.

For the resolution method mentioned in preceding paragraph, the chairperson has
consulted with shareholders for opinions, if shareholders have no objection to the
proposal, "Passed upon the agreenbgmall attending shareholders per the consultation

of the chairperson” shall be recorded; but if shareholders have any disagreement witt
the proposal, the voting method, the number of pass voting right and the proportion
thereof shall be specified.

For the number of shares obtained by solicitor and the number of shares represented b
entrusted proxy, the Company shall prepare statistical table according to the prescribec
form on the date of convening Shareholders' Meeting, and it shall be clearly remealed
the place of Shareholders' Meeting.

For the resolution matter of Shareholders’ Meeting, if it is significant information
pursuant to the provisions of laws and decrees and the provisions of Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation (Juridical ROGreTai Secuties Market), the Company shall
transmit the contents to mops.twse.com.tw within the specified time.

Meeting affairs personnel handling Shareholders' Meeting shall wear 1D dyaaige.

The chairperson may command picketer or security guard to assisirttaim meeting

place order. When assisting in maintaining order on the spot, picketer or security guard
shall wear the arfbadge with "Picketer” character or ID.

If the meeting place is equipped with amplification system, when a shareholder does not
use he equipment configured by the Company to give a speech, the chairperson may be
stop it.

If a shareholder violates rules of procedure and disobeys the correction by chairperson
interrupting the proceeding of meeting and disobeying after being stopped, the
chairperson may command picketer or security guard to ask such shareholder to leave
the meeting place.

During the meeting, the chairperson may announce the rest at appropriate time, in cas:
of force majeure circumstance, the chairperson may judge tootanip stop the
meeting, and announce the time for meeting continuation as the case may be.

Before the end of official business discussion (including ad hoc motion) in the agenda
scheduled by Shareholders' Meeting, if the meeting place is not availabnfmuous

use at that time, Shareholders' Meeting may make a resolution to find another place tc
continue the meeting.

Shareholders’ Meeting may make a resolution to postpone or continue the assembly
within five days pursuant to Article 182 of CompangtA

These Rules will be implemented after the approval of Shareholders' Meeting, and the
same shall apply upon amendment.

Amendment dates of these Rules of Procedure:

These Rules of Procedure were formulated on June 24, 2012.
The first amendment was made June 30, 2014.
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Appendix 3

Article 1:

Article 2:

Article 3:

Article 4:

Article 5:

EZCONN CORPORATION
Director and Supervisor Election Measures
Passed in Sharehold@rMeeting on November 15, 2012

Unless otherwise prescribed by laws and decrees or Articles of Association,
the election of directors and @ervisors of the Company be handled
according to these Measures.

The election of director of the Company shall give consideration to the
overall allocation of Board of Directors. Members of Board of Directors
shall generally possess the knowledge, skillsd aaccomplishments
necessary for duty execution, overall abilities shall be possessed by then
are as follows:

1. Operation judgment ability.

Accounting and financial analysis ability.
Operating management ability.

Crisis management ability.

Industry knowledg.

International market opinion.
Leadership.

© N O Ok WD

Decisionnmaking ability.

The supervisor of the Company shall meet the following conditions:
Integrity and dependability.

Unbiased judgment.

Professional knowledge.

Rich experience.

o bk N

Ability of reading financial eatements.

Apart from meeting the conditions mentioned in preceding paragraph,
among all supervisors of the Company, there shall be at least one
supervisor is the professional accounting or financial personnel.

Qualifications and election of independentediors of the Company shall
comply with the provisions of the "Regulations Governing Appointment of

|l ndependent Directors and Compl i ar
relevant laws and decrees.

After public offering, among the seats of directors, @mnpany shall set
the independent directors and specify them in the Articles of Association,

-69-



Article 6:

Article 7:

Article 8:

and the shareholders will elect the independent directors according to the
List of Independent Director Candidates.

Before convening the Shareholders' Meeting,Gbenpany shall announce

the accepted nomination period of independent director candidates, quote
of independent director, place of acceptance and other necessary matter
before the book closure day; and the acceptance period shall not be les
than ten days

Board of Directors of the Company or the shareholders holding more than
one percent of total outstanding shares may recommend the list of
independent directors for the next session as the reference for electing
independent directors. But the number ofmmations shall not exceed the
guota of independent directors; and the same shall apply for the number o
independent director candidates nominated by Board of Directors.

Independent directors and nomependent directors shall be elected
concurrently, ad votes will be counted separately, and appointment shall
be made separately.

When recommending the list of independent directors as stated in
preceding paragraph, Board of Directors may also provide relevant
materials such asthe candidate's education kgoound, experience,
number of shareholding, the name of representing government or legal
person, and independence compliance etc. for the sake of reference b
shareholders.

The election of directors and supervisors of the Company adopts the single
ballot cumulative election method, the name of elector is replaced by the
sharehol dersd account number , unl
Association, every share has the election right of electing the same numbe
of directors or supervisors, it may elemne person intensively, or elect
several persons separately. Board of Directors shall prepare the number c
ballots equivalent to the number of directors or supervisors shall be elected
and fill in the weight number according to the number of certeiaait
attendance, distribute them to shareholders attending Shareholders
Meeting.

According to the quota specified in Articles of Association, directors and
supervisors of the Company will be elected successively and respectively
based on those who have nballots representing more election rights, if
more than two candidates are getting the same weight number and
exceeding the specified quota, candidates getting the same weight numbe
will be decided by drawing, and the chairperson will make the draw on
behalf of those who fail to attend.

Before the start of election, the chairperson shall designate several
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scrutinizing and counting personnel of shareholders identity to execute all
kinds of relevant duties. The ballot box shall be prepared by Board of
Directors and opened by scrutinizing personnel for verification in public
before voting.

Article 9: If the candidate of the election is of shareholder identity, elector shall fill in
the account name and sharehol der 6
the candidate camn in ballot; if it is not of shareholder identity, the name
and ID document number of the candidate shall be filled in. But when the
candidate is government or legal person shareholder, the candidate nam
column in ballot shall be filled in the name afcé government and legal
person, or the name of representative of such government or legal person
when there are several representatives, the names of representatives sh:
be filled in respectively.

Article 10: The ballot will be invalid in case of any one of thelldaing
circumstances:

Not use the ballot prepared by Board of Directors;

2. Input the blank ballot into ballot box.
3. The handwriting is illegible and unidentifiable or has been altered.
4. If the filled in candidate is of shareholder identity, and its accounena

and sharehol der 0s account numbe
shareholders list; if the filled in candidate is not of shareholder identity,
its name, ID document number is not conforming per checking.

5. Apart from filling in the account name (name)ssh ar eh ol der 0
number (ID document number) of the candidate and the allocated
election weight number, other texts are written.

6. The name of the filled in candidate is the same as other shareholders
name, but the shareholder account name or ID dotumenmber has
not been filled in for identification.

Article 11: After voting, the ballot box shall be opened and ballots shall be counted
on the spot, and the chairperson or the host shall announce the list o
elected directors and supervisors on the spot.

Article 12: Board of Drectors of the Company will issue the notice of election to
the elected directors and supervisors.

Article 13: These Measures will be implemented after the approval of Shareholders
Meeting, and the same shall apply upon amendment.
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Appendix 4

Article 1:

Avrticle 2:

Avrticle 3:

EZCONN CORPORATION
Operational procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets

Purpose:

The acquisition or disposal of assets by the Company shall be handled according to the
provisions of these Procedures or MARegu
of Assetsp Li sted Companyo. Ot her matters r
relevant laws and decrees.

Application scope of assets:

() Investment in stock, government bonds, corporate bonds, financial bonds,
negotiable securities in recognition of funds, depogiteeceipt, call (put)
warrant, beneficial securities and adsatked securities etc.

(1)) Real estate (including land, house and building, investment property, land use
right, inventory in construction industry) and equipment.

(Il Membership certificate.

(IV) Intangide assets such as patent right, copyright, trademark right and chartered
right etc.

(V)  Creditor's rights to financial institution (including receivables, negotiations and
discounts, loan, overdue receivables).

(VI) Derivatives.

(VIl) Assets acquired or disposed througarger, division, acquisition or assignment
of share pursuant to law.

(VIIl) Other important assets.
Terms definitions:

() Derivatives: means the forward contract, option contract, futures contract,
leverage contract, exchange contract, and the compound contraisiogithe
preceding instruments etc., whose values are derived from assets, interest rate
exchange rate, index or other interests etc. Thealled forward contract
excludes the insurance contract, performance contract,-safees service
contract, log-term lease contract and lotgyrm purchase (sales) contract.

(I Assets acquired or disposed through merger, division, acquisition or assignment
of share pursuant to law: means the assets acquired or disposed through merge
division or acquisition pursuarib Enterprises Mergers and Acquisitions Act,
Financial Holding Company Act, Law Governing the Mergers of Financial
Institutions or other laws, or assignment of share of other company (hereinafter
referred to as assignment of share) by issuing new sharasaptito Paragraph
8, Article 156 of Company Act.

(Il Related party, subsidiaries: shall be determined according to the provisions of
Securities Issuer Financial Report Preparation Standards.
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Avrticle 4:

(V)

V)

(V1)

(VII)

(VI

(IX)

Professional appraiser: means the real estate appraiser or aibstioners
engaged in the appraisal of real estate and equipment pursuant to law.

Date of event: means the transaction signature date, payment date, commissior
date, date of transfer, date of board resolution or other dates sufficiently
confirming the trasaction object and transaction amount etc., whichever is
earlier. But if the investment needs to be approved by competent authority, it
means the aforesaid days or the day of receiving approval from competent
authority, whichever is earlier.

Laws and deaes or competent authority: means the laws and decrees of the
Republic of China or the government agency of the Republic of China.

The sec al | ed Arecent financi al stat eme
financial statementudited certified or approved \b the accountant publicly
pursuant to law before the company's acquisition or disposal of assets.

Net value: means the shareholders’ equity certified or approved by the
accountant in recent financial report of the Company. If the financial report of
the Conpany is prepared according to International Financial Reporting
Standards, the stalled net value means the equity attributable to owners of
parent company recorded in the balance sheet as stipulated in the Securities
Issuer Financial Report Preparati®tandards.

Regarding the stipulation of ten percent of total assets, it shall be calculated
according to the total assets amount in the recent individual financial report as
stipulated in the Securities Issuer Financial Report Preparation Standards.

Procelures for assessment on the acquisition or disposal of assets:

(1)

For the acquisition or disposal of real estate or equipment, apart from those
transacted with government agency, built on private land or leased land, or
acquired or disposed for business us#)e transaction amount thereof reaches

to twenty percent of paidp capital of the Company or over NT$300 million,

the appraisal report issued by professional appraiser shall be first acquired before
the date of event, and shall comply with the follogviales:

1. When the limited price, specified price or special price is taken as reference
for the transaction price due to special reasons, such transaction shall first be
proposed to and passed by board resolution, in case of change of transactior
conditiors in the future, the foregoing procedures shall also apply
accordingly.

2. Appraisals by at least 2 professional appraisers shall be required for
transaction with amount in excess of NT$1 billion.

3. If the appraisal results of professional appraiser have amy afnthe
following circumstances, except that all appraisal results of acquired assets
are higher than the transaction amount, or all appraisal results of disposed
assets are lower than the transaction amount, accountants shall be appointet
to handle accaling to No. 20 regulations of the Statement of Auditing
Standards issued by the Accounting Research and Development Foundation
of the Republic of China, and express specific opinions on the reasons for
difference and the appropriateness of transactioe:pric
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(I

(111

(V)

(V)

(V1)

(V1)

(1) The difference between appraisal results and transaction amount
reaches to over twenty percent of the transaction amount.

(2) The difference between the appraisal results of two or more
professional appraisers reaches to over ten percent of the transaction
amount.

4. The date of report issuing by professional appraiser shall not be over three
months later than the contract date. However, the opinion of the original
appraiser may be acceptable when the opinion is based on the same
officially value published witim 6 months.

For the acquisition or disposal of negotiable securities, before the date of event,
the subject companyds recent financi
by the accountant shall be obtained as the reference for appraising transaction
price, furthermore, if the transaction amount reaches to twenty percent of the
paidup capital of the company or over NT$300 million, the accountant shall be
appointed to give opinion on the rationality of transaction price prior to the date
of event, ifexpert's report is adopted, the accountant shall handle pursuant to No.
20 regulations of the Statement on Auditing Standards issued by the Accounting
Research and Development Foundation. However, the ahewdoned
requirements do not apply to transawstioof negotiable securities transacted
actively on the open market, or those regulated by the Financial Supervisory
Commission.

If the transaction amount of acquisition or disposal of membership certificate or
intangible assets reaches to twenty percempaatup capital of the company or
over NT$300 Million, except for the transaction with government agency, the
accountant shall be appointed to give opinions on the rationality of transaction
price before date of event, and the said accountant shall haurdleant to No.

20 regulations of the Statement on Auditing Standards issued by the Accounting
Research and Development Foundation of the Republic of China.

The calculation of the transaction amounts mentioned in preceding 3
subparagraphs shall be subjexthe provisions of Article 11, and the-salled
Afone year o period is defined to be ¢
event of such transaction, but the part for which the appraisal report issued by
professional a p pr apinierehas been obtaines puasoaatdou n
these Procedures may be excluded.

For the acquisition or disposal of assets through the auction procedures of the
court, the appraisal report or acco
supporting documents issuedthy court.

For the obtained appraisal report or opinion of accountant, lawyer or securities
underwriter, the concerned professional appraiser and its appraising personnel,
accountant, lawyer or securities underwriter shall not be the related party to the
transaction party.

For assets acquisition or disposal between the related party, apart from going
through relevant resolution procedures as stipulated in this article and Article 9
and assessment on the rationality of transaction conditions etc., itisadtion

amount thereof in excess of twenty percent of total assets of the company,
appraisal report issued by professional appraiser or accountant's opinion shall
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also be obtained pursuant to this article. The calculation-ofked transaction
amountshall be subject to the provisions in Subparagraph 4 of this article.

Article 5: Procedures for acquisition or disposal of negotiable securities and authorization:

()] The acquisition or disposal of negotiable securities shall be handled according to

A i

(I

nvest ment
Total investment amount and individual limitation of the negotiable securities of

the Company and each subsidiaries:

cycl eo.

Item

Upper limit, subject to the ratio of net value in recent financi

statement

Individual investment

Lump sum investment

Equity investment by adopting equity method

evaluation

100%

100%

Investment in other negotiable securities

20%

50%

(Il Decisionmaking and authorization hierarchy
Delegation of authority
Item President Chairman Bpard of
Directors
Acquisition or disposal of equitywwestment by adopting equity meth 5
evaluation
Acquisition or disposal of Below NT$20 million (inclusive) o]
other negotiable securities From NT$20 million (exclusive) to
negotiable securities trade NT$50 million (inclusive)
in the centralized trading
market or business place ¢ Over NT$50 million (exclusive) 0
securities dealer.
Acquisition or disposal of Below NT$2 million (inclusive) 0
other negotiable securities| From NT$2 million (exclusive) to NT$4
negotiable securities not million (inclusive)
traded in the centralized
trading market or businesy Over NT$5 million (exclusive) 0
place of securities deal
0 : me a n smakirgcsimgailydhereinafter.

Article 6: Procedures for acquisition or disposal of real estate and equipment

() Acquisition or disposal of real estate:
1. The acquisition or disposal of real estate shall be assessed by the executior
unit and agreed by the President, and then submitted to the Board of
Directors for approval.
2. The real estate of the Company and eaclsididries used not for business
purpose shall not exceed 20% of the net value in the last financial statement.

(11 Decisionmaking and authorization hierarchy
ltem Delegation of authority
President Chairman Board of Directors
Acquisition or disposal of re@state 0

Acquisition or disposal of the equipmeritelow 5

NT$20 million (inclusive)
Acquisition or disposal of the equipmerftom

NT$20 million (exclusive) ~ NT$50 million o}
(inclusive)

Acquisition or disposal of the equipmeraver 5

NT$50 milion (exclusive)
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Procedures for acquisition or disposal of membership certificate, copyright, trademark right
and franchise:

() The acquisition or disposal of membership certificate, copyright, trademark right
and franchise shall be assessed by thewia unit and agreed by the President,
and then the execution unit will handle matters regarding signing contracts
according to the procedure.

(1 Decisionmaking and authorization hierarchy

Iltem

Delegation of authority
President Chairman Board of Directos

Acquisition or disposal of membership certificate
copyright, trademark right and franchiskelow 0
NT$5 million (inclusive)

Acquisition or disposal of membership certificate

copyright, trademark right and franchisieom o

NT$5 million (exclusive) to NT$10 million
(inclusive)

Acquisition or disposal of membership certificate
copyright, trademark right and franchisever 0
NT$10 million (exclusive)

Article 7: Procedures for acquisition or disposal of derivatives:

()] Transaction type:

1.

Non-transactional: the hedgmurposed transaction not for the purpose of
transaction.

Transactional: noiedgepurposed transaction for the pusgo of
transaction. The Company does not engage in transactional operation.

(I Operating or risk strategy:

The Company takes risk averse as the principle for engaging in derivatives
transaction, and takethe receivables and payables generated from company
bugnesses, or the net position offsetting the date, amount and currency in balance
sheet for risk averse. It must be confirmed as the hpdg®osed operation before
transaction.

(1) Power and responsibility division:

1.

The transaction personnel and affirmatiomspanel will be designated by
the President.

No one can concurrently act as the transaction personnel, affirmation
personnel and delivery personnel.

Written notice shall be served to the transaction object for the assignment or
dismissal of transaction monnel and affirmation personnel.

(IvV)  Transaction amount and loss ceiling of all and individual contracts:

1.

The overall hedging contract of the Company takes the receivables and
payables generated from company businesses within six months, or the net
position offsetting the date, amount and currency in balance sheet as the
limit for risk averse.
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2. The loss ceiling of contract shall not exceed 20% of the contract amount,

which is applicable to individual contract and all contracts.

(V) Performancesvaluation: it willbe measured and evaluated based on the hedging
strategy, and it will be approved by the President every month.
(VI)  Operating procedure:

1. Approve the responsible transaction personnel.

2. After transaction personnel have been approved for making transaction, it
shdl be submitted to the affirmation personnel immediately for handling
affirmation matters regarding derivatives transaction.

3. Relevant documents on the completed transaction will be submitted to the
delivery personnel for archiving for future reference.

4. Dedsion-making and authorization hierarchy (Awansactional): handle
according to the following table, if approved by the President or Chairman,
thereafter, it shall be proposed to the most recent Board of Directors
Meeting.

Iltem President Chairman Board d Directors

Total accumulated amount is bel o
USD15 million (inclusive)

(o]

Total accumulated amount is ovi
USD15 million (exclusive) and 0
below USD25 million (inclusive)

Total accumulated amount is ov o
USD25 million (exclusive)

(VII)

Risk managentd measure:

1.

Credit risk managementin principle, the transaction object shall be the
domestic or foreign financial institution with good credit record, and is
capable of providing professional information.

Market risk managementselect the market whictan sufficiently disclose
the quotation information.

Liquidity risk management in order to ensure liquidity, the transacting
financial institution must possess sufficient equipment, information and
transaction ability, and is capable of making transaath any market.

Cash flow risk managementthe Company shall maintain sufficient quick
assets and financing limit in respond to the needs in delivery of funds.

Operating risk managementhe authorized limit, operating procedure and
other regulationstgpulated by the Company shall be actually complied with,
S0 as to avoid operating risk.

Legal risk managementany document signing with the financial institution
must go through internal contract signing procedures before signing it
officially, so as taavoid the legal risk.
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Avrticle 8:

(VIII) Regular evaluation method, abnormal situation handling and supervision:

(IX)

(X)

1. The hedgepurposed transaction shall be evaluated at least twice a month,
and the evaluation shall be submitted to the President.

2. Board of Directors shall dagiate the President to supervise and evaluate
whether the risk management measure currently used is appropriate,
whether the engagement in derivatives transaction is handled as required,
whether the performance of engagement in derivatives transaction is
confirming to the existing operating strategy, and whether the risk borne is
within the scope tolerated by the company. If any abnormal circumstance is
found in transaction or profit and loss, necessary solutions shall be taken,
and it shall be reported the Board of Directors immediately.

3. The evaluation report on hedgearposed transaction shall be proposed upon
Board of Directors Meeting. If any abnormal circumstance is found in
transaction or profit and loss, when the independent director has already
been set, the independent director shall attend the Board of Directors
Meeting to express opinions.

For the engagement in derivatives transaction, the Company shall record in
detail the type and amount of derivatives transaction, the date passed by Board
of Directors, matters shall be evaluated prudently as stated in Paragraph (VIII) of
this article, and whether it is handled pursuant to these Procedures and
ARegul ati ons Governing the Acquisit
Companyo i n trivaivesatrarssdciion fer fubufe reterence, unless
otherwise prescribed by other laws, the transaction certification shall be kept for
at least 5 years.

Internal auditors of the company shall regularly learn about the adequacy of
internal control of deriiives transaction, audit the compliance of transaction
department in engaging in the procedures for derivatives transaction on a
monthly basis, and prepare the audit report; and written notice shall be served to
each supervisor in case of major violatisriaund.

Procedures for related party transaction:

(1

(I

For assets acquisition or disposal between the Company and the related party.
relevant resolution procedures shall be handled pursuant to this article and
Article 4, and matters such as the rationalityrahsaction conditions etc. shall

be evaluated. When judging whether the transaction object is the related party,
apart from paying attention to its legal form, its substantial relationship shall also
be considered.

For the Company's acquisition or displasiareal estate from the related party, or

the acquisition or disposal of other assets other than real estate with the related
party, if the transaction amount is in excess of twenty percent ofupatapital

of the company, ten percent of total assatsNG$300 million, except for
transactions of purchase or sale of government bonds or bonds with
repurchase/reverse repo agreement or subscription or repurchase of money
market fund issued by domestic securities investment trust enterprise, the
documents maioned below shall be presented to the Board of Directors for
approval and to the supervisor for ratification before signing transaction contract
and making payments:
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)

1. The purpose and necessity of, and expected benefit from the acquisition or
disposal of ach assets.

2. The reason for selecting the related party as transaction object.

3. For the acquisition of real estate from the related party, assess relevant
materials on the rationality of expected transaction conditions pursuant to
the provisions of Paragraghl) and (IV) of this article.

4. Related party's original acquisition date and price, transaction object, and
relations between the company and related party etc.

5. The cash flow forecast of the next twelve months after the month when the
contract is expectkto be signed, as well as assessment on the necessity of
transaction and rationality of funds utilization.

6. The appraisal report issued by professional appraiser or opinion of
accountant obtained in accordance with the previous paragraph.

7. Restrictions andther important terms of the transaction.

The calculation of the transaction amount in this paragraphs shall be subject to
the provisions of Article 11, andthe-soal | ed fAone year o pe
counting back for one year from the date of ewansuch transaction, but the

part that has been passed by Board of Directors and acknowledged by supervisol
pursuant to these Procedures may be excluded.

For acquisition or disposal of equipment for business use between the Company
and parent company or Issidiaries, Board of Directors may authorize the
Chairman to make a decision in advance within a certain quota, and then
propose to the most recent Board of Directors Meeting for subsequent
recognition.

When the Company has set the independent directopambsed to Board of
Directors for discussion pursuant to provisions of this article, opinions of each
independent director shall be fully considered, and any adverse opinion or
qualified opinion of the independent director shall be specified in the #inut
Book of Board of Directors Meeting.

When the Company has set the Audit Committee, matters shall be acknowledged
by the supervisor according to the provisions of this paragraph shall be agreed
by more than one second of all members of Audit Committeetjfit may be
agreed by more than two thirds of all directors, and the resolution of the Audit
Committee shall be specified in the Minute Book of Board of Directors Meeting.
All members of Audit Committee and all directors referred to in preceding
paragr@h are calculated based on the actual appointment.

For acquisition of real estate from the related party, the Company shall assess the
rationality of transaction cost according to the following methods:

1. Rel ated partyds tr ans asciterest and fhe ¢ost e
borne by the buyer pursuant to law. Thecatled necessary funds interest
cost is calculated according to the weighted average interest rate for the
money borrowed by the company in the year of assets acquisition, but it
shall notbe higher than the highest lending rate for-financial enterprises
announced by the Ministry of Finance.
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(V)

2. If the related party once used such subject matter to set mortgage for
borrowing from a financial institution, the total value in loan evaluation
conducted by the financial institution on such subject matter, but the
financi al i nstitutionds actual acc.
shall reach to over seventy percent of the total value in loan evaluation and
the period of loan has beerome than one year. However, such stipulations
shall not apply if the financial institution is the related party to a transaction
party.

For combined purchase of land and house of the same subject matter, assessme!

on transaction cost may be conducted ediog to any method listed in

preceding paragraphs for the land and house respectively.

For acquisition of real estate from the related party, apart from assessing on the
real estate cost according to the provisions of this paragraph, the Company shall
also appoint the accountant to review and give specific opinions.

Provided any one of the following circumstances, for acquisition of real estate
from the related party, the Company shall handle according to preceding
paragraphs, and provisions of precedingmragraphs of this paragraph shall
not apply:

1. The related party acquires real estate due to inheritance or bestowal.

2. The related party has acquired the real estate by contract conclusion for over
five years according to the contract date of this traisact

3. Sign joint construction contract with the related party, or acquire the real
estate by appointing the related party for real estate construction by means
of consigned construction on the owned land or consigned construction on
the leased land etc.

If the results of appraisal as stipulated in preceding paragraph are lower than the
transaction price, the Company shall handle pursuant to Paragraph (V). Except
for under the following circumstances, and objective evidences have been
proposed and specifictranal opinions of professional real estate appraiser and
accountant have been obtained:

1. If the related party acquires the raw land or leases the land for construction,
it shall prove the conformance to any one of the following conditions:

(1) The raw land isassessed according to the method stipulated in
preceding paragraph, and the releé
reasonable construction profit of the house exceeds the actual
transaction price. The smalled reasonable construction profit shall be
t he average operating mar gi n of
department in the last three years or the most recent gross margin in
construction industry published by the Ministry of Finance, whichever
is lower.

(2) The transaction cases of other wretaed parties on other floors of the
same real estate or in adjacent regions within one year, with similar area
and equivalent conditions after assessment according to the due
reasonable floors or regional price differences in real estate transaction
practice
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(V)

(3) The lease cases of other n@tated parties on other floors of the same
real estate within one year, with equivalent transaction conditions after
estimation according to the due reasonable floor price differences in
real estate lease practice.

2. For thereal estate purchased from the related party as proved by the
Company, its transaction conditions are equivalent to the transaction cases
with other norrelated parties in adjacent regions within one year and the
area is similar.

In principle, the trans@ion cases in adjacent regions mentioned in this
paragraph take the cases transacted in the same or adjacent street and within 5C
meters away from the transaction object or those cases with similar announced
present value; the smlled similar area mearike area in transaction case of
other nonrelated party is not lower than fifty percent of the area of transaction
object; and the soalled within one year is defined to be counting back for one
year from the date of real estate acquisition this time.

For the Company's acquisition of real estate from the related party, if the results
of assessment as prescribed in Paragraph (lll) and (IV) are lower than the
transaction price, the following matters shall be handled:

1. For the price difference between redigs transaction price and assessment
cost, allocate special surplus reserve pursuant to Paragraph 1, Article 41 of
Securities Exchange Act, and it shall not be distributed or transferred to
capital increase and shares allotment.

2. Supervisor shall handle muant to Article 218 of Company Act.

3. Handling circumstances pursuant to Item 1 and 2 shall be reported to
Shareholders' Meeting, and detailed transaction contents shall be disclosed
in the annual report and public prospectus.

If special surplus reserve @located pursuant to this paragraph, the Company
shall wait until the assets purchased at a high price has been recognized in the
loss from failing price, or is disposed or properly compensated or reinstated, or if
it is not unreasonable as confirmed bther evidences, such special surplus
reserve may only be employed with the consent of competent authority.

For the Companyds acquisition of rea
other evidences indicating that the transaction is not confortwngegular
businesgpractice;it shall also be handled pursuant to this paragraph.

Article 9: Procedures for enterprise merger, division, acquisition and assignment of share:

(1

For handling of merger, division, acquisition or assignment of share, before
convening theBoard of Directors Meeting for resolution, the Company shall
appoint accountant, lawyer or securities underwriter to give opinions on the
rationality of equity swap proportion, acquisition price or the cash or other
properties of shareholders distributedand propose it to the Board of Directors

for discussion and approval. But for the Company's merger of subsidiaries in
which it directly or indirectly holds one hundred percent of outstanding shares or
capital sum, or the merger between the subsidianewhich it directly or
indirectly holds one hundred percent of outstanding shares or capital sum, the
rationality opinions issued by the foregoing experts may be exempted.
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(In

(Il1)

For the participation in merger, division or acquisition, regarding important
agreenent contents and relevant matters of merger, division or acquisition, the
Company shall prepare open documents to the shareholders before convening
the Shareholders' Meeting, and deliver them to shareholders together with the
expertoés opi nin@necedng panaggapht and meetthg notice of
Shareholders' Meeting, and they will be taken as the reference for whether or not
to agree on such merger, division or acquisition case. Except that the matters of
merger, division or acquisition may be exengptbom the resolution of
Shareholders' Meeting pursuant to the regulations of other laws.

When the Company participates in the merger, division or acquisition of a
company, if the Shareholders' Meeting of either party cannot be convened for
resolution dueo short of attendance or voting rights or other legal restriction, or
the motion is denied by Shareholders' Meeting, the Company shall immediately
explain the reason for occurrence, subsequent handling operation and expectec
date of convening Shareholdédveeting to the public.

For the Companyods participation i n
otherwise prescribed by law or it must be reported to competent authority for
approval in advance due to a special factor, the Company shall convene the
Boad of Directors Meeting and Shareholders’ Meeting on the same day to
resolve matters related to merger, division or acquisition.

For the Companyods participation i n
prescribed by law or it must be reported to competeiitority for approval in
advance due to a special factor, the Company shall convene the Board of
Directors Meeting on the same day.

When the stock of the Company is traded in stock market, OTC, or business
place of securities dealer, in case of partieggrain merger, division, acquisition

or assignment of share, the Company shall make the following materials into
complete written records and keep them for five years for future reference:

1. Personnel basic information: including all persons participatétkiplan of
merger, division, acquisition or assignment of share, or the plan executor
before disclosing the information, and their title, name, ID Card No.
(PassporNNo. if such person is a foreigner).

2. Date of important event: including the date of signietter of intent or
memorandum, date of appointing financial or legal adviser, date of signing
contract, and date of Board of Directors Meeting etc.

3. Important documents and minute book: including the plan of merger,
division, acquisition or assignment sifiare; letter of intent or memorandum,
important contracts, and minute book of Board of Directors Meeting etc.

When the stock of the Company is traded in stock market, OTC, or business
place of securities dealer, in case of participation in merger, @iviacquisition

or assignment of share, within two days after the date of resolution in Board of

Directors Meeting, the Company shall report the personnel basic information

and date of important event as required in this paragraph for future reference to
the Internet information system in a prescribed form to report to the competent
authority for future reference.
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(V)

V)

(V1)

When the stock of the Company is traded in stock market, OTC, or business
place of securities dealer, if the company participated in mergeésicsh,
acquisition or assignment of share is not a listed company or its stock is not
traded in the business place of securities dealer, the Company shall sign an
agreement with it and handle according to the provisions of this paragraph.

All personnel prticipated in or know about the plan of company merger,
division, acquisition or assignment of share shall issue written confidentiality
undertaking, before information disclosure, they shall not disclose the plan
contents to the public, nor voluntarilyy or sell the stock and other negotiable
securities of equity nature of all companies related to the case of merger,
division, acquisition or assignment of share, nor doing so in the name of others.
For the Companyés part i wisitoradr assignmentn n
of share, except for the following circumstances, the equity swap proportion or
acquisition price shall not be changed arbitrarily, and their change circumstances
shall be stipulated in the merger, division, acquisition or assignofesitare
contract:

1. Handling cash capital increase, issuing convertible bonds, stock grants,
issuing warrant bonds, preferred shares with warrants, stock option
certificate and other negotiable securities of equity nature.

2. Disposal of major company assets other actions affecting financial
business of the company etc.

3. Occurrence of major disaster, major technical change etc. that affecting the
shareholders' equity of company or security price.

4. For the companies participated in merger, division, acquisitor
assignment of share, either party adjust the buyback of treasury share
pursuant to law.

5. Change in the subject of merger, division, acquisition or assignment of share,
or change in the number of participants.

6. Other conditions for the change as stipedhin the contract, and such
conditions have been disclosed to the public.

For the Companyds participation i n n
of share, the rights and obligations of the companies participated in merger,
division, acquisition b assignment of share shall be specified in the contract,
and the following matters shall also be specified:

1. Handling for breach of contract.

2. Principle of handling the outstanding negotiable securities of equity nature
or the treasury share already boughtk before the company is eliminated
or divided due to merger.

3. After calculating the base date for equity swap proportion, the quantity of
treasury share may be bought back by the participating company pursuant to
law and the handling principle thereof.

4. Handling method for the change in the subject or the number of participants.

Expected plan implementation progress and expected completion date.

6. When the plan fails to be completed in due time, relevant handling

procedures such as the expected conventite aflaShareholders' Meeting
shall be convened pursuant to law etc.

o
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(VII)

(VI

For the Companyés participation i n n
of share, after the information has been disclosed to the public, if either party
plans to carry out mergerivikion, acquisition or assignment of share with other
company, except that the number of participants is reduced, and Shareholders'
Meeting has resolved and authorized Board of Directors to change the authority,
the Company may be exempted from conven8itareholders' Meeting for
resolution again, in the original case of merger, division, acquisition or
assignment of share, the completed procedures or legal actions shall be carriec
out again.

If there is a nofpublic company participated in the merger,ision, acquisition

or assignment of share, the Company shall sign an agreement with it and handle
according to the provisions of Paragraph (lll), Paragraph (IV) and Paragraph
(VII).

Article 10: Announcement and declaration procedures (applicable when the Compapuhbica
company pursuant to the laws of the Republic of China):

(1)

If the acquisition or disposal of assets is under the following circumstances, the
Company shall announce and declare relevant information at the website
designated by Financial Supervisoryn@ission within two days as of the date

of event:

1. Acquire or dispose real estate from interested party, or acquire or dispose
other assets other than real estate from interested party and the transactior
amount thereof reaches to twenty percent of compaigup capital, ten
percent of total assets, or over NT$300 Million. However, the transactions
of the purchases or sales of government bonds, or bonds with
repurchase/reverse repo agreement, or subscription or repurchase of money
market fund issued by dastic securities investment trust enterprse
excluded.

2. Merger, division, acquisition or assignment of share.

3. The loss in derivatives transactions reaches to the amount of loss ceiling of
all or individual contract as stipulated in handling procedures.

4. The type of assets in acquisition or disposal is the equipment for business
use, and the transaction object thereof is a-retated party, and the
transaction amount meets one of the following provisions:

(1) If the paidup capital of the Company is less thdm$10 billion, the
transaction amount is in excess of NT$500 million.

(2) If the paidup capital of the Company is in excess of NT$10 billion, the
transaction amount is in excess of NT$1 billion.

5. The Company acquires or disposes the real estate for corstrusi by
running construction business and the transaction object thereof is a
nonrelated party, and the transaction amount is not in excess of NT$500
million.

6. For the real estate acquired by means of construction on private or leased
land, or house digbution, sharing or sales in joint construction, the
transaction amount expected to be input by the Company is not in excess of
NT$500 million.

7. For the assets transaction other than those mentioned from Item 1 to Item 6,
or disposal of creditor's rightg/la financial institution or the investment in
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(I

(Il1)

(V)

(V)

Mainland China, the transaction amount thereof is in excess of twenty
percent of paieup capital of the company or NT$300 million. Except for the
following circumstances:

(1) Purchase or sale of government bonds.

(2) For professional investors, the transaction of negotiable securities in
foreign and domestic stock exchange or business place of securities
dealer; or the ordinary corporate bonds subscribed, raised or issued in
domestic primary market and the generalriicial bonds not involved
in stock right; or the negotiable securities subscribed according to the
regulations of Taipei Exchange as recommended by a securities dealer
acting as the adviser of public company due to underwriting business
needs.

(3) Purchase orade of bonds with repurchase or reverse repo agreement, or
subscription or repurchase of money market fund issued by domestic
securities investment trust enterprise.

The transaction amounts stated in Paragraph (I) shall be calculated according to
the following methods:

1. The amount of each transaction.

2. The cumulative amount of acquisition or disposal of similar assets with the
same counterparty within one year.

3. The cumulative amount of acquisition or disposal (separately for the
acquisition and disposal) otal estate under the same development plan
within one year.

4. The cumulative amount of acquisition or disposal (separately for the
acquisition and disposal) of the same negotiable securities within one year.

5. Thesec al | ed Aone year 0 ouyntmng baak for onesyead e f
from the date of transaction. However, the part that has been announced
pursuant to these Procedures or relevant laws and decrees may be excluded.

The Company shall declare the derivatives transacted by the Company and its
domestt nontpublic subsidiaries as at the end of previous month on a monthly
basis, and such declaration shall be input at the information declaration website
designated by Financial Supervisory Commission in a specific form before the
10th day of every calendaronth.

When the items due to be announced by the Company as required should be
supplemented and corrected due to the mistake or omission upon announcement
all items shall be announced and declared again within two days as of the day of
knowing such mistee or omission.

In case of acquisition or disposal of assets by the domestiepuldit
subsidiaries of the Company, and it shall be announced and declared pursuant tc
the provisions of Article 11, the Company shall make announcement and
declaration instey for the required announcement and declaration standards
applicable to the subsidiaries as stipulated in Paragraph (I) of Article 11,
regarding the stipulations geaching to twenty percent of paigh capital or ten
percent of total assets, it shall fgbject to the paidp capital or total assets of

the Company.
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Article 11:

Article 12:

Article 13:

Article 14:

Article 15;

Article 16:

The Company shall retain the relevant contracts, minutes, memoranda, appraisal reports
and opinions from CPA/attorney/securities broker related to the acquisition or disposal
of assets for deast 5 years, unless otherwise prescribed by other laws.

After the Company has announced and declared the transaction according to the

provisions of Article 11, provided any one of the following circumstances, the Company

shall announce and declare relat information at the website designated by this

Financial Supervisory Commission within two days as of the date of event:

() The changes, termination or rescission of the original transaction contracts.

(I The merger, division, acquisition, or assignment oérshs not completed
according to the schedule specified in contracts.

(I The changes in contents of the previous announcement and declaration.

Where managerial officer or undertaker violates the regulations of these Procedures, it

shall be handled accordintp relevant punishment and reward measures of the

company.

Procedures for controlling the acquisition or disposal of assets of subsidiaries

() The Company shall urge subsidiaries to formulate the Procedures for Acquisition
or Disposal of Assets pursuant teeth i Regul ati ons Govern

and Disposal of Assets by Listed Com
(1 For acquisition or disposal of assets, subsidiaries of the Company shall
formul ate Ainternal contr ol systemo

of Ass et slpforrhandlipge and shallemake a written summary and
report to the Company on the single acquisition or disposal of assets or the
cumulative amount of transaction of the same nature is in excess of NT$10
million, as well as the derivatives transactionagey as at the end of last month
before the fifth day of every calendar month. Audit Department of the Company
shall list the acquisition or disposal of assets by subsidiaries as one of the
monthly audit items, and the auditing circumstances thereoflshiiited as the
necessary item for reporting audit business to Board of Directors and
Supervisors.

(I If the subsidiaries of the Company aeonrpublic company, and its acquisition
or disposal of assets meets the standards required to be announcedared,decl
it shall notify the Company on the date of event, and the Company will make an
announcement pursuant to Article 11.
Amendment to procedures:
Upon formulating these Procedures, after it is passed by Board of Directors, it shall be
sent to each supesar and submitted to Shareholders’ Meeting for approval; if any
director raises objection and with record or written statement, the Company shall also
submit its objection to each supervisor and submit to Shareholders' Meeting for
discussion, and the sarskall apply upon amendment. When the Company has set the
independent director and when submitting these Procedures to Board of Directors
Meeting for discussion, opinions of each independent director shall be fully considered,
and any adverse opinion or djfiad opinion of the independent director shall be
specified in the Minute Book of Board of Directors Meeting.
Amendment dates of these Procedures:
These Procedures were formulated on June 24, 2012.
The first amendment was made on June 30, 2014.

The secod amendment was made on May 29, 2018.
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Appendix 5

Article 1:

Article 2:

Article 3:

Article 4:

EZCONN CORPORATION

Operational Procedures for Loaning of Company Funds

Purpose:

These Procedures are formulated pursuan
Compani esd Gr ant inngg Eonfd oLrosaennse natn da nMla kGu a r

Object of granting of loans:

l. Except for under the following circumstances, no loans shall be granted to
shareholders or any other person:

(D  Has business contact with the Company.

(I With shortterm (means one year, but if thengmany's operating cycle is
longer than one year, subject to the operating cycle) needs in financing.
The financing amount shall not exceed forty percent of the net value of the
company.

The financing amount stated in Subparagraph (llI), Paragraph | means th
cumulative balances of shddrm financing of the Company. For the
Companybs granting of |l oans to the
indirectly holding one hundred percent of voting shares, the amount of loan
thereof is limited to fifty percentfdhe net value.

(Il1) The loan period is limited to one year or the operating cycle, whichever is
longer, in case of granting of loans due to the relationship of business
contract, the period of granting of loans may be extended if passed by the
resolution of Bard of Directors, but every extension is limited to one year.

Limit of granting of loans:
Object Limit - company net value %
Total 40%
Individual 20%

20% (limited to 100% of total sales or
purchasemount in the business contract
previous year, if the transaction is less th

one year, calculate according to the
cumulative amount of previous month)

Individual - company with direct
business relationship

Notes: Net value means the net value in the Company's most recent financial statement
audited, cetified or approved by the accountant.

Decisionrmaking and authorization hierarchy, terms definition:

l. The Companyds granting of | oans shal
resolution of Board of Directors, except for the parent company and subsidiarie
of the Company, it is not allowed to authorize other person to make a decision.
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For the Companydés granting of | oans t
to the resolution of Board of Directors, the Company may authorize the Chairman
to grant acertain limit (no more than 10% of company net value) to the same
granting object and separate loan appropriation or circulated employment within
the period less than one year.

When the Company has set the independent director, opinions of each
independentdirector shall be fully considered upon discussion in Board of
Directors Meeting, and their specific opinions on consent or objection as well as
the reasons for objection shall be listed in the record of Board of Directors
Meeting.

The secalled subsidiaes and parent company in these Procedures shall be
determined according to the provisions of Securities Issuer Financial Report
Preparation Standards.

Thesecal | ed net value means the shareh
recent financial report audd, certified or approved by the accountant. If the
financial report of the Company is prepared according to International Financial
Reporting Standards, the -salled net value means the equity attributable to
owners of parent company recorded in théahee sheet as stipulated in the
Securities Issuer Financial Report Preparation Standards.

Article 5: Procedures of handling granting of loans:

Application:

(D When the Company is handling granting of loans matters, the application
unit shall pr oposeGrtahnet | mMAp polfi clad a no:
Department to propose application, the Finance Department shall evaluate
the risks and make records, and submit it to the Chairman for approval after
passing the examination, and then submit it to Board of Directors for
approval and determination, and it shall be handled according to the
resolution of Board of Directors.

(I Contents of evaluation for examining granting of loans by the undertaker of
Finance Department shall include the following:

1. Necessity and rationality gfranting of loans.
2. Credit and risk assessment on the object of granting of loans.

3. The I mpact on companyos oper ati
shareholders' equity.

4. Whether the collateral is acquired and the evaluated value of collateral.
Sign loan comtct, collateral or guarantee:

()  Contract shall be signed for granting of loans, and the interest rate shall not
be lower than the maximum interest rate for the Company to borrow
shortterm borrowing from the financial institution.

(I When the Company is grang of loans to others, per evaluation or if the
Board of Directors thinks it is necessary, the financing object shall provide
the collateral of equivalent financing limit or ask a guarantor to provide
guarantee, and guarantee the completeness of its.rights

-88-



VI.

VII.

Appropriation

()  After the applicant has filled in the Request Payout Form attached with the
copy of loan contract and submitted them for approval, they will be
submitted to the accounting unit to confirm the correct entry, and then
forward them to the fiance unit for appropriation.

(I Undertaker of the finance unit shall register the matters of granting of loans
into the log book for granting of loans, and record the name of enterprise in
granting of loans, the object of granting of loans, amount, the daseg@ by
Board of Directors, the date of loan appropriation, and the matters shall be
assessed prudently pursuant to laws and decrees and these Procedures i
detail for future reference.

Extension:

Before the maturity of loan case, notify the borrowerntake repayment
according to the contract, in case of engagement in granting of loans due to
business contract relationship, if it is still needed, its period of granting of loans
may be extended if passed by the resolution of Board of Directors, but every
extension is limited to one year.

Repayment:

()  After loan appropriation, the finance unit shall always pay attention to the
financial, business and credit conditions etc. of the borrower and guarantor,
if collateral is provided, the changes in its collatealle shall also be paid
attention to, three before the maturity of loan, the company shall notify the
borrower to repay the principle and interest upon maturity or go through
extension formalities.

(I Upon repayment when the loan becomes mature, theviberrshall first
calculate the accrued interest, after it is repaid together witprtheipal;
the promissory note may be canceled and returned to the borrower. Upon the
borrower's application for cancellation of mortgage right, the finance unit
shall first find out whether there is any loan balance, and then decide
whether or not to agree upon cancellation of mortgage right.

(1) Undertaker of the finance unit shall register the matters of loan repayment
into the log book for granting of loans for future refece.

Bad debt assessment:

Pursuant to the provisions of generally accepted accounting principles, the
accounting unit shall assess the circumstances of granting of loans and allocate
sufficient allowance for bad debts, and properly disclose relevantmatmn in
financial report, and provide relevant materials to the certified public accountant
to carry out necessary audit procedures.

When the loan object is not conforming to the regulations of these Procedures c
laws and decrees or the balance excedds limit due to the change of
circumstances, the Company shall make improvement plans and submit relevatr
improvement plans to each supervisor, and complete the improvement according t
the planned schedule.
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VIII. Internal audit personnel of the Company shaltlit the Procedures of Granting of

Loans and its execution situation at least every quarter, and make a written recor
in case of any signification violation is found, written notice shall be served to each
supervisor immediately.

Procedures of controlng subsi di ari esd granting o

() If the subsidiaries of the Company plans to grant loans to others, the
Company shall order such subsidiaries to formulate the Procedures of
Granting of Loans according tbc the
Compani esd0 Granting of Loans and N
promulgated by Financial Supervisory Commission, and handle according
to the formulated procedures.

(I When the subsidiaries of the Company plans to grant loans to others, it may
only be poceeded with the approval of the Company; finance unit of the
Company and designated dedicated personnel shall specifically assess the
necessity, rationality and risk of such granting of loans to others, the
operating risk to the parent company and suasas, as well as the impact
on the financial condition and shareholders' equity, and submit to the
President and Chairman for approval.

(1) At the beginning of every month, finance unit shall acquire each
s u b s i dalanae wtatement on granting of loaosothers of the last
month.

(IV) Finance unit of the Company shall regularly assess whether each
subsidiariesd subsequent c grantedard! m
the procedures for handling overdue loans are appropriate.

(V) Internal audit personnel olubsidiaries shall also audit the Procedures of
Granting of Loans and its execution situation at least every quarter, and
make a written record, in case of any signification violation is found, written
notice shall be served to the audit unit of the Compamyediately, and
audit unit of the Company shall submit written materials to each supervisor.

(V1) Internal audit personnel shall regularly audit each b s i damplianged s
with AProcedures of Granting of Lo
submittingthe findings and suggestions of audit report for approval, internal
audit personnel shall notify the audited subsidiaries to make improvement,
and regularly prepare tracking report, so as to confirm they have taken
appropriate improvement measures in time.

Article 6: Declaration and announcement (applicable when the Company is a public company):

(1

(I

The Company shall announce and declare the balance of granting of loans of the
Company and subsidiaries in the last month before the tenth day of each calendal
month.

If the ganting of loans meet any one of the following standards, it shall be
announced and declared within two days as of the date of event:

1. The balance of granting of loans to others of the Company and subsidiaries
reaches to over twenty percent of the net vatuthe most recent financial
statement of the Company.
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Article 7:

Avrticle 8:

Article 9:

2. The balance of granting of loans of the Company and subsidiaries to a single
enterprise reaches to over ten percent of the net value in the most recent
financial statement of the Company.

3. The newly aded amount of granting of loans of the Company or subsidiaries
reaches to over NT$10 million and over two percent of the net value in the
most recent financial statement of the Company.

(1) If the subsidiaries of the Company is a not a domestic public comaadysuch
subsidiaries has the matters shall be announced and declared as stipulated i
Subparagraph 3 of preceding paragraph, the Company shall make the
announcement and declaration instead.

Punishment principle:

Where company personnel violatiee reguléions of these Procedures or laws and
decrees, it shall be handled according to pursuant punishment and reward measures ¢
the company.

Amendment:

Upon formulating these Procedures, after it is passed by Board of Directors, it shall be
sent to each supesdr and submitted to Shareholders' Meeting for approval; if any
director raises objection and with record or written statement, the Company shall also
submit its objection to each supervisor and submit to Shareholders' Meeting for
discussion, and the samskall apply upon amendment. When the Company has set the
independent director and when submitting these Procedures to Board of Directors
Meeting for discussion, opinions of each independent director shall be fully considered,
and their specific opinions aronsent or objection as well as the reasons for objection
shall be listed in the record of Board of Directors Meeting.

Amendment dates of these Procedures:

These Procedures were formulated on June 24, 2012.
The first amendment was made on June 30, 2014.
The second amendment was made on June 21, 2016.
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Appendix G

Article 1:

Article 2:

Article 3:

Avrticle 4:

EZCONN CORPORATION

Operational Procedures for Endorsements and Guarantees
Purpose:

These Procedures are formulated pursuan
Compani esdL&Ganstandg Maki ng Endor sement

In order to strengthen financial management on making endorsement and guarantee an
reduce operating risk, it is hereby formulated these Procedures.

Scope of endorsement and guarantee:
()  Endorsement and guaranfee financing:
1. Ticket discount financing.

2. Make endorsement or guarantee for the purpose of financing for other
company.

3. Otherwise issue the notes to the fiimancial enterprise as the guarantee for
the purpose of financing for other company.

(I) Customs dutie endorsement and guarantee mean the endorsement or guarantee
made for the Company or other company regarding the matters of customs duties.

(ll1) Other endorsement and guarantee mean the endorsement or guarantee matte
cannot be classified in to the previoustparagraphs.

If the Company provides movable property or immovable property to set pledge right or
mortgage right as the guarantee for oth
according to the regulations of these Procedures.

Objects the Compyy may make endorsement and guarantee for:
(D The company with business contact.

(I)  The company in which the Company directly and indirectly holds more than fifty
percent of the voting shares.

(Il  The company directly and indirectly holds more than fifty percernhefvoting
shares of the Company.

Among the companies in which the Company directly and indirectly holds more than
ninety percent of voting shares, endorsement and guarantee may be made, and th
amount thereof shall not exceed ten percent of net valugeo€ompany. But for the
endorsement and guarantee between and among the companies in which the Compar
directly and indirectly holds one hundred percent of voting shares, the amount of thereof
is limited to fifty percent of net value of the Company.

Mutual guarantee between and among the Company and the enterprise of the sam
business due to the needs of engineering contracting, or the mutual guarantee betwee
and among the Company and the joint constructors according to contract provisions, or
making endaement and guarantee for the invested company by all contributing
shareholders according to their shareholding ratio due to joint investment relationship,
endorsement and guarantee may be made without being restricted by the provisions i
preceding two pagraphs. The scalled contribution in preceding paragraph means the
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Article 5:

Avrticle 6:

contribution directly made by the Company or the contribution made via the company
in which the Company holds one hundred percent of the voting shares.

The sacalled subsidiaries and patecompany in these Procedures shall be determined
according to the provisions of Securities Issuer Financial Report Preparation Standards.

Thesocal | ed net value means the sharehol ¢
financial report audited, cerigfd or approved by the accountant. If the financial report

of the Company is prepared according to International Financial Reporting Standards,
the soecalled net value in these Procedures means the equity attributable to owners of
parent company recorded the balance sheet as stipulated in the Securities Issuer
Financial Report Preparation Standards.

Limit of external endorsement and guarantee of the Company and subsidiaries:

Ratio of upper limit subject to the

Object of endorsement and guaran
percemage of current net value

Total 40%

Single enterprise 20%

Single enterprisecompany with | 20% of net value or the amount of busin

direct business relationship contact in the last year, whichever is low

Notes: Net value is subject to the one rdeorin most recent financial statement
audited or approved by the accountant.

Decisionmaking and authorization hierarchy:

()  When handling endorsement and guarantee, it shall be passed by the resolution o
Board of Directors first. But Board of Directors ynauthorize the Chairman to
make a decision within a certain amount, and report to Board of Directors for
subsequent recognition thereafter.

(I When the Company is handling endorsement and guarantee, when it is necessar
to exceed the limit stipulated in tlee®rocedures due to business needs and it is
conforming to the conditions stipulated in these Procedures, it shall be agreed by
Board of Directors, and the majority of directors shall affix their names for joint
guarantee for the loss of the Company migbtgenerated from exceeding the
limit, and make amendments to these Procedures and propose to Shareholders
Meeting for subsequent recognition; when the Shareholders’ Meeting disagrees, a
plan shall be made to eliminate the exceeding part within a ceddamd.

(1I1) If the object of endorsement and guarantee is the subsidiaries whose net value i
lower than one second of the paid capital, apart from detailed examination
according to the provisions of Article 7 hereof, subsidiaries shall also be asked to
provide sufficient collateral. Finance unit and dedicated personnel designated by
the Chairman shall specifically assess the impact degree of such endorsement an
guarantee on the operating risk, financial condition and shareholders' equity of the
Company ad subsidiaries, after it is submitted to the President and Chairman for
approval, it shall be first passed by the resolution of Board of Directors before
execution, and propose to the Shareholders' Meeting for future reference thereafte
If the stock of he subsidiaries has no par value or the par value is not NT$10 per
share, the amount of paigp capital calculated according to the provisions of this
paragraph shall be the total of share capital plus capital resesteng premium.
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(IV) Opinions of eachndependent director shall be fully considered when making

endorsement and guarantee for others, and their specific opinions on consent ol
objection as well as the reasons for objection shall be listed in the record of Board
of Directors Meeting.

Article 7: Proceduresf the Company for handling endorsement and guarantee are as follows:

When handling endorsement and guarantee, based on the application of the objec
of endorsement and guarantee, finance unit shall examine its qualifications one by
one, whether the limiis conforming to the regulations of these Procedures, and
whether there is any circumstances shall be announced and declared, and analyz
the operating, financial and credit conditions etc. of the object of endorsement and
guarantee, so as to assess ftisksrof endorsement and guarantee and make
records, and collateral shall be acquired when necessary. After specifying the
contents, reasons and results of risk assessment of relevant endorsement an
guarantee, it shall herecededhfter it is submitted tthe Chairman for approval or
agreed by the resolution of Board of Directors according to the provisions of
Article 6.

Finance unit shall establish the register book regarding the matters of endorsemen
and guarantee. After the endorsement and guaranteehbemn approved by the
Chairman or agreed by the resolution of Board of Directors, apart from applying
for the seal according to the required procedures, matters such as the date passe
by Board of Directors or decided by the Chairman, matters of guaraatee of
enterprise for endorsement and guarantee, risk assessment results, amount c
endorsement and guarantee, contents of collateral acquisition and the conditions
of releasing endorsement and guarantee responsibility etc. shall be recorded in
detail for future reference, and documents such as relevant notes and agreement
etc. shall also be photocopied and kept properly.

Internal audit personnel shall audit the Procedures of Making Endorsement and
Guarantee and its execution situation at least eveayteyy and make a written
record, in case of any signification violation is found, written notice shall be
served to each supervisor immediately.

Finance unit shall prepare the detailed statement regarding the occurrence anc
cancellation of guarantee mattan every month for the sake of tracking control
and making announcement and declaration according to the required standards
periods and contents, and shall assess and recognize the possible loss o
endorsement and guarantee on a quarterly basis aogdalithe regulations of
Securities Issuer Financial Report Preparation Standards, and shall disclose
endorsement and guarantee information in the financial report and provide
relevant materials to the certified public accountant to carry out necessdnygaud
procedures.

If the object of endorsement and guarantee meets the requirement originally but
fails to meet the requirement subsequently, or the amount of endorsement and
guarantee exceeds the stipulated limit due to the change in the base for limit
cdculation, the amount of endorsement and guarantee to such object or the
exceeding part shall be eliminated upon the expiry of period stipulated in relevant
contract, or the financial unit shall make a plan and have it approved by the
President, and theresd the improvement plan to each supervisor, and eliminate
all of it within a certain period and report to the Board of Directors.
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Before the expiry of endorsement and guarantee period, finance unit shall take the
initiative to notify the guaranteed entege to take back the guaranteed notes kept
by the bank or creditords institutior
and guarantee.

Article 8: Custody of special seal used for endorsement and guarantee of the Company an
procedures of seal using are asdof:

The Company shall apply to the Ministry of Economic Affairs to register the
company seal as the special seal for endorsement and guarantee, the custodian
such seal shall be agreed by Board of Directors, and list the seal under custody in
handover.

After the endorsement and guarantee have been approved by the Chairman o
agreed by the resolution o kealBumvall o f
shall be approved by the President along with seal using documents such as the
approval records, contts related to endorsement and guarantee or guaranteed

notes etc., and then go to the place of seal custodian for seal using.

Upon seal using, seal custodian may only use the seal after checking whether
there is any approval record, whether fhns e a | v _a ls@appomoved by the
President and whether the seal using application documents are consistent.

Upon making guarantee for a foreign company, the letter of guarantee or
guarantee related contract issued by the company shall be signed by the Chairmal
with the authorization from Board of Directors.

Article 9:  Announcement and declaration procedures:

(1)

(I

(Il1)

(V)

(V)

(V1)

The balance of endorsement and guarantee of the Company and subsidiaries
reaches to over fifty percent of the net value in the most recent financial statement
of the Compay.

The balance of endorsement and guarantee of the Company and subsidiaries to
single enterprise reaches to over twenty percent of the net value in the most recen
financial statement of the Company.

The balance of endorsement and guarantee of the Cynaal subsidiaries to a
single enterprise reaches to over NT$10 million, and the total balance of
endorsement and guarantee, kegn investment and granting of loans to such
enterprise reaches to over thirty percent of the net value in the most recent
financial statement of the Company.

The newly added amount of endorsement and guarantee of the Company or
subsidiaries reaches to NT$30 million and over five percent of the net value in the
most recent financial statement of the Company.

If the subsidiariesf the Company is not a domestic public company and there are
matters shall be announced and declared by such subsidiaries pursuant to laws an
decrees or the provisions of the preceding four paragraphs of these Procedures, th
Company shall make the anmzement and declaration instead.

Contents of announcement and declaration are subject to the regulations of
relevant laws and decrees or government department.
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Article 10:

Article 11:

Article 12:

Article 13:

If subsidiaries of the Company plans to make endorsement and guarantee for others, i
shall formulate the measures for making endorsement and guarantee for others pursuar
to AGuidelines for Public Companiesd Gr
Guaranteeo befor e ma kntea tpr otherd Subssdenes of the a r
Company shall submit the detail of endorsement and guarantee to the Company even
month, and the Company will carry out relevant audit on the execution situation of
handling endorsement and guarantee.

Among the compangein which the Company directly and indirectly holds more than
ninety percent of voting shares, endorsement and guarantee may be made, and th
amount thereof shall not exceed ten percent of net value of the Company. Except for the
endorsement and guarantestween and among the companies in which the Company
directly and indirectly holds one hundred percent of voting shares.

Where managerial officer or undertaker of the Company violates the regulations of
these Procedures, it shall be handled accordingelevant punishment and reward
measures of the company.

Upon formulating these Procedures, after it is passed by Board of Directors, it shall be
sent to each supervisor and submitted to Shareholders' Meeting for approval before
implementation; if any direot raises objection and with record or written statement,
the objection thereof shall be sent to each supervisor and submitted to Shareholders
Meeting, and the same shall apply upon amendment.

When the Company has set the independent director and whenittsub the
Procedures of Making Endorsement and Guarantee to Board of Directors Meeting for
discussion pursuant to the provisions of preceding paragraph, opinions of each
independent director shall be fully considered, and their specific opinions omtonse
objection as well as the reasons for objection shall be listed in the record of Board of
Directors Meeting.

Amendment dates of these Procedures:

These Procedures were formulated on June 24, 2012.
The first amendment was made on May 13, 2013.
The secad amendment was made on June 30, 2014.
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Appendix 7

EZCONN CORPORATION

Shareholdings of All Directors and Supervisors

As at April 12, 019, total outstanding shares of the Company is 66,000,000 shares, pursuant to th
regul ations of eé fomgglite Peecentagetof DiractorR and Supervisors of Public
Companies and Auditingd, the statutory number
the statutory number of shares held by all supervisors is 660,000 shares.

As at the boolclosure day of this General Meeting, the shareholdings of individual and all directors and
supervisors recorded in the register of shareholders are as follows

Book closure day: April 12, 2019

Shareholdings u Shareholdings in register g
Date of Term of a ointmgent po shareholders as at the bog
Title Name ) ) PP closure day
appointment | office Norberor T P - Nomber of
umber o roportion umber o o
shares (%) shares Proportion (%
SHC CONSOLIDATED
. INVESTORS LLC Three
Chairman Representative: CHEN, June 22, 2017 years 2,072,202 3.14 2,072,202 3.14
STEVE
DURAL HOLDINGS
Director LIMITED June 22,2017 | 1€ 1 1046382 |  1.89 1,246,382 1.89
Representative: EE years
SHIH-CHING
Jia Jiu Investment Co., Lt Three
Director Representative: CHANG| June 22, 2017 ears 800,000 1.21 800,0® 1.21
YIN-HUA y
TRANSNATIONAL
Director | NVESTMENTLIMITED | 5 0 55 2017 | T8 | 1488103 | 2.25 1,488,193 2.25
Representative: CHOU, years
WAN-SUN (Notes 1)
Director CHEN, HSIAOYUN June 22, 2017 52;?? 3,111 0 3,111 0
Independen) | Fe cHiENPING June22, 2017 | 1hree 0 0 0 0
Director years
Indgpenden' HSIAO, CHUNGCHIANG June 22, 2017 Three 0 0 0 0
Director (Notes 2) years
Total shareholdings of all directors 5,609,888 8.49 5,609,888 8.49
. Three
Supervisor KO, YUAN-I June 22, 2017 years 14,222 0.02 14,222 0.02
Supervisor|  LAI, WEN-HSIEN June 22, 2017 | 'hree 0 0 0 0
years
EGTRAN CORPORATION Three
Supervisor | Representative: CHIEN,| June 22, 2017 ears 3,395,944 5.15 3,395,944 5.15
CHIH-CHENG y
Total shareholdings of all supervisors 3,410,166 5.17 3,410,166 5.17
Notes 1: TRANSNATIONAL INVESTMENT LIMITED (original representative is CHE®;RENG), and CHOU,
WANSUN was assigned as the representative on August 8, 2018.
Notes 2:  Independent Director Mr. HSIAO, CHUNGHIANG was removed on August 10, 2018.
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